
 

 

 

Rutland County Council                   
 
Catmose, Oakham, Rutland, LE15 6HP. 
Telephone 01572 722577 Email governance@rutland.gov.uk 

        
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
A meeting of the CABINET will be held remotely, via Zoom 
https://zoom.us/j/96183837004 commencing at 10am when it is hoped you will be 
able to attend. 
 
Yours faithfully 
 
Mark Andrews 
Interim Chief Executive 
 
Meeting:   CABINET 
 
Date and Time:  Tuesday, 18 August 2020 at 10.00 am 
 
Venue:   https://zoom.us/j/96183837004 
 
Governance   Emma Powley 01572 720991 
Officer to contact:  email: governance@rutland.gov.uk 
 
Recording of Council Meetings: Any member of the public may film, audio-record, 
take photographs and use social media to report the proceedings of any meeting that 
is open to the public. A protocol on this facility is available at 
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/ 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

1) APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2) ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM THE CHAIRMAN AND/OR HEAD OF THE PAID 
SERVICE  
 

 

3) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

  
In accordance with the Regulations, Members are required to declare any 
personal or prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those 
interests in respect of items on this Agenda and/or indicate if Section 106 of 
the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them. 
 

 

4) RECORD OF DECISIONS  

Public Document Pack

mailto:corporatesupport@rutland.gov.uk
https://zoom.us/j/96183837004
https://zoom.us/j/96183837004
mailto:governance@rutland.gov.uk
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-council/have-your-say/


 

 

 To confirm the Record of Decisions made at the meeting of the Cabinet held 
on the 31st July 2020. 
 

 

5) ITEMS RAISED BY SCRUTINY  

 To receive items raised by members of scrutiny which have been submitted to 
the Leader and Chief Executive (copying in Governance) by no later than 12 
noon on Friday 14th August 2020. 

 
 

6) COVID 19 UPDATE & APPROACH TO CONTINUED USE OF EMERGENCY 
POWERS - UPDATE  

 Report No: 98/2020 

(Pages 5 - 8) 
 

7) STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT  

 Report No: 89/2020 
(Key Decision) 

(Pages 9 - 94) 
 

8) ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND PRUDENTIAL 
INDICATORS 2019/20  

 Report No: 92/2020 

(Pages 95 - 114) 
 

9) OAKHAM ENTERPRISE PARK SITE INFRASTRUCTURE CHANGES  

 Report No: 96/2020 
(Key Decision) 

(Pages 115 - 120) 
 

10) ANY ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS  

 To receive items of urgent business which have previously been notified to the 
person presiding. 
 

 
---oOo--- 

 
  
MEMBERS OF THE CABINET: Mr O Hemsley Chairman 

 Mr G Brown 
Mrs L Stephenson 
Mr A Walters 
Mr D Wilby 

SCRUTINY COMMISSION:   

 



 

 

Note: Scrutiny Members may attend Cabinet meetings but may only speak at the 
prior invitation of the person presiding at the meeting. 

 
ALL CHIEF OFFICERS   
PUBLIC NOTICEBOARD AT CATMOSE 
GOVERNANCE TEAM 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report No:98/2020 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

18th August 2020 

COVID 19 UPDATE & APPROACH TO CONTINUED USE OF 
EMERGENCY POWERS - UPDATE 

Report of the Chief Executive 

Strategic Aim: All 

Key Decision: No Forward Plan Reference: N/A 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr O Hemsley, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Rutland 
One Public Estate & Growth, Tourism & Economic 
Development, Resources (other than Finance) 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Phillip Horsfield – Deputy Director 
Corporate Governance (Monitoring 
Officer) 

01572 758154 
phorsfield@rutland.gov.uk 
 

Ward Councillors All 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Notes the continued use of the Civil Emergency Delegation  

 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 At the Cabinet meeting held on the 21st April 2020, it was agreed that Cabinet 
would: 

i) Note the use of the Civil Emergency Delegation 

ii) Note the Advice of the Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer and Monitoring 
Officer in relation to the duration of the emergency powers. 

iii) Agree to review the emergency powers at each meeting of Cabinet to ensure 
that the powers are still required. 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 The Council’s Scheme of Delegation makes provision for at 11.10.5 that the Chief 
Executive will have power:  

5

Agenda Item 6

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


2.2 “To take any urgent action necessary in the event of a civil emergency and deal 
with matters relating to civil protection/emergency planning arising from the 
Council’s powers and duties under the appropriate legislation.” 

2.3 Further the Financial Procedure Rule 4.6 states that: 

2.4 “In the case of a ‘major incident’ as defined in the Emergency Plan, the Chief 
Finance Officer may determine that alternative arrangements to those in Finance 
Procedure Rules shall apply. In particular, the Chief Finance Officer in conjunction 
with the Chief Executive may: (a) establish different rules for financial systems and 
financial administration to the extent necessary to meet the requirements of the 
emergency; (b) establish a budget for the emergency, over and above the 
approved budget; (c) determine which officers may commit the emergency budget, 
and any rules to apply in managing the budget; (d) authorise any capital 
expenditure required as a consequence of the emergency” 

2.5 It was established on March 16th 2020 that the opinion of the Chief Executive, 
Section 151 Officer and Monitoring Officer is that COVID-19 crisis activates both of 
these powers.  

2.6 Early in the crisis a Decision Making Log was created for the use of the 
emergency powers (and other delegated powers that have been deployed during 
the crisis). This document has been created in order to record the decisions that 
have been made and the powers that these have been made under. 

2.7 The Decision Making Log has been shared with all Members. This allows for 
scrutiny of decisions after the event and further ensures that all members are 
informed of the decisions that have been made through delegated powers. 

2.8 The Decision Making Log also identifies who has been consulted in relation to 
each decision and includes information on the decision taker and the delegation 
used. 

2.9 The program of meetings agreed at the Annual Council meeting on the 29th June 
2020, included the restoration of both regular meetings and briefings. This reflects 
the position presently where the Council is operating some services at the same 
time as continuing to respond to the civil emergency.  

3 DURATION OF THE EMERGENCY POWERS 

3.1 The Statutory Officers (Head of Paid Service/Chief Executive, Section 151 Officer 
and Monitoring Officer) are of the unanimous opinion that the powers referred to in 
paragraphs 2.2 and 2.4 above remain available for use by Officers while the crisis 
is ongoing. 

3.2 As a programme of meetings has been re-instated then decisions relating to the 
Council’s day to day business will be made in the usual way. However, the 
position remains that the Council is still involved with the whole of the public sector 
in dealing with the present Civil Emergency and there remains a need to respond 
to the emergency. This is evidenced by the actions taken by partners in Leicester, 
east Lancashire, parts of West Yorkshire. and Greater Manchester, and through 
the additional powers granted to Council’s in the Local authority powers to impose 
restrictions: Health Protection (Coronavirus, Restrictions) (England) (No.3) 
Regulations 2020. 

6



4 CONSULTATION 

4.1 The report is an update on the position and as a consequence there has been no 
consultation on the matters contained within the report. 

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

5.1 The report provides an update on information regarding the actions taken and the 
Constitutional position.  

6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report as the report is for 
noting and is provided as an update. 

7 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

7.1 These are contained in the Report  

8 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 None arising from the report. 

9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

9.1 An Equality Impact Questionnaire is not required for this report. 

10 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 There are no community safety implications arising from this report. 

11 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications arising from this report. 

12 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

12.1 It was agreed by Cabinet to review the emergency powers at every Cabinet 
meeting to ensure that the powers are still required. The emergency response 
remains in effect and the situation remains uncertain. Should circumstances 
become more challenging in the near future, there is a need for the emergency 
powers to be in place to allow for continued decision making under the Council’s 
Scheme of Delegation 

13 BACKGROUND PAPERS   

13.1 There are no background papers for the report. 

14 APPENDICES  

14.1 There are no appendices to the report  

 

7



A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

8



Report No: 89/2020 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

18th August 2020 

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT  

Report of the Interim Strategic Director of Places 

Strategic Aim: Sustainable Growth 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/050620 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr G Brown Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Environment, Finance, Planning and Property 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Penny Sharp, Interim Director of 
Places 

Tel: 01572 758160 
 psharp@rutland.gov.uk  
 

 Roger Ranson, Planning Policy 
Manager 

Tel: 01572 758238 

rranson@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors All 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Considers all responses to the consultation undertaken on the draft revised 
Statement of Community Involvement. 

2. Adopts an amended revised Statement of Community Involvement as set out in 
Appendix 1 of this report.  

  

9

Agenda Item 7

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 Cabinet is requested to consider the responses to the consultation undertaken on 
the draft revised Statement of Community Involvement which has been the subject 
of a non-statutory public consultation exercise which are summarised in the table 
in Appendix 2 of this report. 

1.2 In addition, Cabinet is requested to adopt an amended revised Statement of 
Community Involvement as set out in Appendix 1 of this report, which has taken 
account of the responses to the public consultation which are set out in Appendix 
2.   

1.3 The review of the Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) has been 
undertaken in order to 
 

(a) encompass statutory changes to planning regulations for policy making, 
neighbourhood planning and development management; and 

 
(b)  allow national guidance in relation to Covid 19 to be incorporated into the SCI 

ensuring that the planning function can continue to operate within current 
restrictions.           
   

1.4 Review of the SCI at this time will also allow progress with the Local Plan 
consultation, enabling the statutory (“Regulation 19”) consultation (and subsequent 
stages) regarding the Local Plan approved by Council in February 2020 to take 
place as encouraged by Government guidance.  
 

1.5 Supporting the continuity of the planning function in the County will aid the 
recovery of the local economy and the economic resilience of the County by 
providing greater certainty and confidence for future investment and development. 

            
2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  

2.1 A four week consultation was undertaken on the amended revised Statement of 
Community Involvement approved for consultation by Cabinet at its meeting on 
16th June 2020.  This took place between 19th June and 17th July 2020.     

2.2 A summary of the responses made to that consultation together with Officer 
comments on responses are set out in Appendix 2.  

2.3 The report to Cabinet in June highlighted that the Council needs to comply with 
Regulation 35 (1) of the Local Plan Regulations regarding the availability of 
documents for all Local plan consultations including proposals for the pre-
Submission Local Plan statutory (“Regulation 19”) consultation. This specified that 
a document is to be taken to be made available by a local planning authority 
when—  

(a)  made available for inspection, at their principal office and at such other places 
within their area as the local planning authority consider appropriate, during 
normal office hours; and      

(b) published on the local planning authority’s website.    

10



2.4 This requirement was taken into account in preparing the amended revised SCI for 
Cabinet consideration and subsequent consultation. On 15th July 2020, however, 
the Government issued amended Regulations regarding this particular 
requirement.  New Regulation 36A(1)(a) modifies Regulation 35(1) of the 2012 
Regulations so that a document will be taken to be made available by a local 
planning authority under the Regulations when it is published on the authority's 
website. The modification removes the requirement on a local planning authority to 
make the document available for public inspection at the authority's principal office 
and at such other places as the authority considers appropriate.  It is intended that 
these amendments will remain in place until the end of the calendar year.   

2.5 The amended Regulations have been supplemented by more detailed guidance 
published by the Government.  This sets out:       
                       
How do The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 
(Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 change the requirements to 
make certain documents available for inspection and on request? 

These regulations make temporary changes to how documents are required to be 
made available under regulation 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (“the 2012 Regulations”). They temporarily 
remove the requirement on a local planning authority to make documents available 
for public inspection at the authority’s principal office and at such other places as 
the authority considers appropriate. They also make temporary changes to 
regulation 36 of the 2012 Regulations to remove the requirement on a local 
planning authority to provide hard copies of documents made available under 
regulation 35. Documents are still required to be made available on the local 
planning authority’s website. This modification will apply until 31 December 2020. 

See further detail. 

Paragraph: 079 Reference ID: 61-079-20200715     
             
  Consultation on revised draft SCI 

2.6 A total of 1362 individuals and organisations were on the Local Plan mailing list at 
the start of the SCI consultation. They were all sent a notification about the SCI 
consultation (621 letters and 741 emails).  In total, 139 responses were received 
by the close of the consultation. It is worth noting that only 17 responses were 
received to the first review of the SCI in 2014.  Details of the responses made to 
the consultation can be found in Appendix 2 of this report. This sets out a 
summary of the responses received about each question and the Officer 
Response to them, including suggested changes which should be made to the SCI 
where appropriate. Some of the responses received set out comments outside the 
scope of the consultation which was focussed on the proposed changes to the 
SCI.      

2.7 There are a number of key issues emerging from the consultation, which are 
summarised below: 

2.7.1 The following groups were identified by respondents as being under- 
represented in the planning process: 

11

https://eur01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.legislation.gov.uk%2Fid%2Fuksi%2F2020%2F731&data=02%7C01%7CRRanson%40rutland.gov.uk%7C4a1a68661a4e409455f408d8299a1e24%7C60a080bbbc0f4d9399c183748e10674d%7C1%7C0%7C637305089191595413&sdata=K3RX0kqIz%2BNw94xr0zzhB%2Bh9710LxqM7PcXJmcToYOs%3D&reserved=0


Armed Forces People without access to public 
transport 

Veterans Homeless 

Older people and vulnerable people Those with learning difficulties 

People without access to the internet 
or computer skills 

Parish Forums 

People for whom English is not their 
first language 

LEPs 

Secondary Schools and FE college  

 

2.7.2 Concern that the changes proposed to the SCI were not clearly articulated: 
In particular it is apparent that many of those responding had interpreted the 
changes to the SCI as restricting future consultation to online response forms only, 
it was also identified that there was a lack of clarity over the reason for including 
Appendix 4 on Neighbourhood Plans and a lack of clarity about the role of 
community engagement in the planning application process. 

2.7.3 Focus on electronic responses: Respondents are concerned that future 
consultation should not be undertaken solely in digital formats and that letters and 
paper response forms should be allowed.  

2.7.4 Engaging with those without access to the internet: Considerable number of 
responses indicated that those without home internet access or the computer skills 
to respond to consultation would be disadvantage if consultation was undertaken 
in web based format only. As Rutland has an aging population and those aged 
over 65 are considered less likely to have home access to the internet 
respondents consider this is a significant issue for the elderly and vulnerable within 
the Rutland.  

2.7.5 Role of the Parish Forum: concern amongst some Parish Councils about the 
removal of a specific reference to the Parish Forum, as this is seen as playing an 
important role in identifying issues and concerns of the general population. 

2.7.6 Need to provide paper copies of planning application documents and to inform 
more than immediate neighbours of large scale planning applications: Some 
concern that the methods of notifying people about applications which might affect 
them are insufficient and that there is still a need to paper copies of applications to 
be available, particularly for major applications. Comments were also made that 
appendix 5 should set out who would be notified of planning applications. 

2.7.7 Legality and appropriateness of the consultation on this SCI: Some concern 
has been indicated about the approach undertaken to the consultation, particularly 
restricting responses to the online forms; the clarity of what was being changed 
and why; and that the consultation does not meet Governments Code of Practice 
or the Gunning Principles.           

Proposed Statement of Community Involvement 

12



2.8 Appendix 1 sets out changes to the SCI (Second Review) to reflect the 
consultation responses received and the recent temporary amendment to the 
Local Plan Regulations.  Cabinet is requested to consider and approve these 
changes.  Changes are shown in the Appendix as deleted text and new text is 
highlighted in grey. These changes take account of national planning policy 
guidance with respect to amending SCIs regarding engagement with those without 
access to the internet as highlighted in the previous report to Cabinet.  In 
particular, this states under  

Paragraph: 078 Reference ID: 61-078-201200513  

 “the local planning authority should then make any temporary amendments that are 

necessary to allow plan-making to progress, and that continue to promote effective 
community engagement by means which are reasonably practicable. Local 
planning authorities are strongly encouraged to use online engagement methods 
to their full potential. Appropriate methods include virtual exhibitions, digital 
consultations, video conferencing, social media and providing documents for 
inspection on a public website. Authorities will also need to take reasonable steps 
to ensure sections of the community that don’t have internet access are involved 
and consider alternative and creative ways to achieve this. Authorities may wish to 
consider engaging sections of the community, that do not have internet access, 
through representative groups rather than directly, targeting only people in areas 
most affected by proposals, and allowing individuals to nominate an advocate to 
share views on their behalf. Consulting by telephone or in writing can also be used 
where this is feasible and alternatives can’t be identified. Opportunities to combine 
public consultations can be explored so that offline methods can be made more 
cost effective”.  

2.9 The key points emerging from the consultation as summarised above have been 
taken into consideration and have been appropriately addressed in the Proposed 
SCI set out in Appendix 1.        
   

2.10 The proposed SCI also appropriately deals with the Government Guidance which 
highlights that authorities need to take reasonable steps to ensure sections of the 
community that don’t have internet access are involved. In this regard, it is noted 
that whilst data sets from the Office of National Statistics do indicate that internet 
usage amongst the over 65s’ is proportionately lower than it is across the whole 
population (which is about 90% regular usage for the East Midlands population), 
there is still a significantly high proportion of those aged 65 or over with access to 
the internet. Information sourced through the Covid Shielding process indicated 
that less than 10% of those in this age group who were shielding did not have 
access to the internet. This reflects national data which indicates that 12% of the 
Leicestershire and Rutland population never use the internet.   
       

2.11 In summary, the issues and changes to the SCI set out in Appendix 1 cover: 
           

Key Issue Proposed Action 

Legislative changes 
introduced on 15th July 
2020 

Amend section 1 to reflect legislative changes 
introduced on 15th July and provide greater clarity 
about the need to update the SCI now and for it to be 
reviewed once the current Covid-19 related restrictions 
have been removed. 

13



Provide clarity about the 
purpose and role of the 
SCI in plan making 

This is already set out in sections 1 and 2 however 
further clarification of this has been added. 

Using additional means 
of engaging 

Clarify that the methods set out in the Appendices 1-4 
are the MINIMUM requirement for consultation on the 
different policy documents at different stages. This is to 
ensure that the minimum requirement can be met and 
to provides flexibility for the use of additional forms of 
consultation and engagement depending upon the 
issue and the stage at which the document is at.   

Engaging those without 
internet access and who 
cannot access 
documentation 

New section added into Section 3 setting out the 
additional measures we are putting place to address 
the needs of those without internet access. This goes 
beyond the minimum set out in the Appendices. 

Focus on electronic 
responses 

Government guidance is to focus on web based and 
electronic communication, and it should be recognised 
that the draft SCI did not prevent the submission of 
responses by email, letter or paper form, however this 
has been clarified. 

Role of the Parish 
Forum 

Rather than specify that the Parish Forum is a  
stakeholder, changes proposed to the SCI set out that 
each Parish and Town Council and the parish 
meetings were key stakeholders in their own right and 
that the Council would use a variety of means to 
engage with them (this could include amongst other 
formats the Parish Forums and/or the weekly Parish 
Briefings introduced to communicate through the 
Covid19 pandemic). In this way the changes make the 
SCI more flexible and adaptive to changing 
circumstances, therefore no further change is 
proposed to this paragraph.  

Planning application 
process not inclusive 

The changes to this section of the SCI are not 
substantial and fully reflect current statutory 
requirements. No further changes have been 
proposed. 

Legality and 
appropriateness of the 
consultation on this SCI 
(with reference to the 
Gunning Principles and 
the Governments Code 
of Practice) 

Consultation on the SCI is optional and there are no 
planning regulations to determine the format of 
consultation on an SCI. The process undertaken is 
considered appropriate and proportionate, particularly 
given that it relates only to changes in the legislation 
since adoption of the SCI in 2014 and, in response to 
the restrictions during the pandemic. Clear views have 
been received from the community about the proposed 
changes and these have been considered and taken 
into account in the final SCI document. 

Legality of undertaking 
Local plan Regulation 
19 consultation 

The Government has introduced changes to legislation 
which enable consultation at Regulation 19 to proceed 
in an entirely web based format. They have also issued 
guidance which encourages Planning Authorities to 
continue to make progress with Local Plan preparation. 
The SCI reflect this and also that all reasonable steps 
will be taken to ensure consultation is nonetheless 

14



carried out fairly and effectively. It is therefore 
appropriate for the Council to continue to make such 
progress with the plan which was approved by Council 
in February this year.  

 
2.12 The outcome of the SCI consultation and the proposed additional changes to the 

SCI will be presented to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 13th August 2020.  
Members of Cabinet will be informed of the views of the Committee at its meeting.
    

2.13 If the SCI is approved by Cabinet then it is proposed to undertake the Local Plan 
statutory (“Regulation 19”) consultation over a six week period, commencing on 28th 
August 2020.          
   

3 CONSULTATION  

3.1 Three stages of consultation have taken place in the preparation of the Local Plan 
and the recommendation to approve an amended SCI as set out in Appendix 1 will 
enable the statutory consultation on the plan at Regulation 19 to commence. 

3.2 The SCI is not a development plan document and there is no statutory 
requirement to consult on a review of it.  However, the Council had indicated its 
intention to consult on the SCI Review in the LDS approved by Cabinet in 
December 2019.  Therefore, a four week consultation was undertaken on the 
reviewed SCI as outlined above. It is for the Council to determine the nature and 
form of that consultation; in undertaking this consultation voluntarily, the Council 
nevertheless need to ensure that it is carried out properly and fairly, relative to the 
issues consulted on.  This consultation is not covered by any legislative 
requirements and Officers consider that it has been carried out properly and fairly, 
relative to the issues consulted on. The exercise undertaken is considered 
appropriate and proportionate, particularly given that it relates only to changes in 
the legislation since adoption of the SCI in 2014 and, in response to the 
restrictions during the pandemic, the method of consultation with the community. 
Clear views have been received on what are seen as shortcomings with the 
proposals as seen from the Summary of Consultation Responses and these have 
been considered and taken into account in the final SCI document. 

3.3 In line with Government guidance regarding that it is good practice for authorities 
to inform the public of their intentions to update the SCI and of the changes that 
have been made.  In addition to the public consultation, measures will be 
undertaken to inform the public through press releases, newsletter and emails to 
those on the planning policy consultation database. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS   

4.1 The alternative option is to consider any further additional amendments to the SCI 
or, in the case of the Local Plan consultation to await the time when the current 
SCI can be used as the basis of the Local Plan consultation.  

4.2 Officers consider that the SCI set out in Appendix 1 forms an adequate and 
appropriate basis for consultation on planning matters, taking account of all 
responses to the consultation and the most recent changes to legislation and 
Government guidance. 

15



4.3 At present, there is still some uncertainty when the Council would be able to 
conduct consultation within the context of the current SCI and there is a need for 
the SCI to be revised to deal with statutory changes to planning regulations.  The 
proposed amendments to the SCI would therefore provide the opportunity to 
maintain progress with the Local Plan in order to aid the economic recovery of the 
County following the likely impact of the Covid-19 situation on the local economy.  
In addition, some of the changes to the SCI are required to encompass statutory 
changes to planning regulations for policy making, neighbourhood planning and 
development management.  It is intended to consider reviewing the SCI again 
when appropriate to do so following the further easing of Covid-19 restrictions.  
           

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS  

5.1 The Council has a budget in 20/21 to deal with costs arising from the 
development, consultation and examination stages of the Local Plan.  In respect of 
the consultation stage, there will be some additional costs with respect to printing 
and distribution in making the proposed changes to the SCI.  These are 
unquantified at present but are expected to be small and should be contained 
within existing budgets.  

6 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS  

6.1 The Council must comply with any commitments it has made in the adopted 
Statement of Community Involvement (SCI). Government advice contained in the 
National Planning Policy Guidance and Covid19 Guidance recommends that 
changes should be made to SCI to ensure that Local Plans can continue to 
progress.  The SCI has been reviewed to reflect this guidance and other statutory 
and regulatory changes relating to the planning function.    
      

6.2 Local Authorities are required by legislation to prepare a Local Plan to set the local 
planning framework for their area. The current Local Plan adopted in 2011 was 
intended to cover the period until 2026. There is a need to ensure the plan is up to 
date through a review of the Plan. Failure to have an up to date local plan in place 
limits the Council’s ability to influence the quantum, location and quality of 
development in its area. The Government have made clear that they expect 
Councils to have a local plan in place.        

6.3  The Neighbourhood Planning Act 2017 provides for intervention in the local plan 
making process. In November 2017, the Government confirmed that it would use 
these powers to intervene in the case of 15 Councils who failed to meet their 
deadlines for publishing local plans. The Secretary of State went on to say, “the 
remaining authorities who are not making progress on their plan-making and fail to 
publish a plan for consultation, submit a plan to examination or to keep policies in 
plans up to date are on notice that consistent failure to make sufficient progress 
will no longer be tolerated. My Department will begin formally considering the case 
for intervention as deadlines are missed”. As a consequence, the threat of 
intervention into Rutland’s Local Plan would be more immediate than previously 
anticipated should the Council fail to make progress towards submitting a plan for 
examination by a Local Plan Inspector.       
       

6.4  The Council has produced the Pre-Submission version of the Plan in line with the 

16



statutory requirement to do so and this has been approved by Council in February 
2020. The Council is required by statute to invite representations on the Proposed 
Submission Documents (i.e. the Plan, the Sustainability Appraisal and other 
relevant supporting documents) over a 6 week period prior to Submission to the 
Secretary of State. These representations should be on matters of soundness and 
legal compliance only, as these are the only matters the Inspector can consider at 
the Examination.     

       
7 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS  

7.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT  

8.1 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 requires public authorities to have due regard 
to several equality considerations when exercising their functions. Section 149 
replaced pre-existing duties concerning race, disability and sex. It extended 
coverage to the additional “protected characteristics” of age, gender reassignment, 
religion or belief, pregnancy and maternity, sexual orientation and, in certain 
circumstances, marriage and civil partnership. 

8.2 The report to Cabinet in June highlighted that an equality screening assessment 
taking account of the amended proposals for the SCI is required.  This is attached 
as Appendix 3 of this report.  This assessment recognises that there will be a 
varied impact arising from the proposed changes on the population, particularly 
those residents who are without home access to the internet which is likely to be 
higher among the elderly, with age being a protected characteristic. 

8.3 The SCI set out in Appendix 1 acknowledges the need to put in place additional 
measures to address the needs of those without home access to the internet as 
well as measures designed to engage specifically with underrepresented groups 
(who do not normally engage in planning). Many of these groups represent people 
within the community who fall within the protected characteristics covered by the 
Equalities Act Additional information has been included in the SCI about how the 
Council will seek to engage with those who do not have access to the internet and 
are unable to respond to documents in an electronic format.  Access to the 
Internet will vary.  The revised SCI reflects that limited telephone information in 
relation to queries is still available as an alternative to email or face-to-face contact 
(the latter probably being impracticable due to Covid-19), and so makes it clear 
that non-electronic representations can be made with or without the standard form. 
This has been made much clearer in the revised SCI at Appendix 1.   

8.4 In addition, it is still intended that relevant documents with respect to the Local 
Plan statutory consultation will be made available for inspection at Catmos on a 
booking system which allows the Council to implement appropriate arrangements 
which meet Covid 19 Restrictions. This arrangement will be in place despite the 
recently amended Local Plan Regulation which, for a temporary period, no longer 
require this. Consideration will also be given to the ability to safely make copies of 
the documents available for inspection in libraries as they begin to re-open in the 
coming months. Town and Parish Council and Parish Meetings will also be 
encouraged to make similar arrangements for consultation documents to be made 
available within their own communities. Planning Officer’s continue to be available 
by telephone and a triage system is being put into place to ensure that people 

17



calling the Council can be directed to the most appropriate place/person to help 
them access consultation materials.       
     

9 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS  

9.1 In the interests of public safety, the proposed consultation on the Local Plan will be 
undertaken in line with Government advice on social distancing in response to 
Covid-19. 

10 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

10.1 None identified.           

11 ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 Environmental implications - None identified 

11.2 Human Resource implications - None identified 

11.3 Procurement Implications - None identified 

12 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS   

12.1 The current SCI has been reviewed in order to update all elements of community 
engagement in the planning process with respect to statutory changes to planning 
regulations for policy making, neighbourhood planning and development 
management as well as to address issues related to Covid-19 restrictions. 

12.2 The SCI set out in Appendix 1 will provide the opportunity to maintain progress 
with    the Local Plan in circumstances where there are limitations on access, 
movement and face to face contact which make the current provisions of the SCI 
impossible to implement for an uncertain period of time.      
    

12.3 The proposals are in line with recent guidance issued by the Government. The 
Covid-19 related changes to the SCI are temporary and the SCI will need to be 
reviewed again once current restrictions on movement and contact is lifted. 
             

13 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

13.1 There are no additional background papers to the report. 

14 APPENDICES  

14.1 Appendix 1 – Proposed Reviewed Statement of Community Involvement 

14.2 Appendix 2 – Consultation response to the public consultation on a draft 
Statement of Community Involvement. 

14.3 Appendix 3 – SCI Equality Impact screening assessment 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

18



 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Statement of  
Community Involvement 

 
 

Second Review  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Rutland County Council 

Statement of Community 

Involvement – Second Review 

August 2020 

 

19



Rutland County Council Statement of Community Involvement 2020 

2 

 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

 

Title 

Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review  

Subject matter 

To provide a clear structure and guidance on how the Council intends to engage with the 
community and stakeholders through the planning process 
 

Adoption Date 

The Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was adopted by the Council on xxxx 

Contact Information 

This document can be made available on request, in other languages and formats (large print, 

Braille or on audio tape) by contacting: 

 

Planning Policy Team 

Rutland County Council 

Catmose 

Oakham 

Rutland 

LE15 6HP 
 

Tel: 01572 722577 

Fax: 01572 758427 

E-mail: localplan@rutland.gov.uk 

Web: www.rutland.gov.uk  
  

20

mailto:localplan@rutland.gov.uk


Rutland County Council Statement of Community Involvement 2020 

3 

 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

 

Contents 
Section 1: Introduction ....................................................................................................... 4 

Background ...................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Purpose of the SCI .......................................................................................................... 2 
Need for review ................................................................................................................. 3 
Changes in consultation methods ...................................................................................... 4 

Section 2: Community Involvement in the Preparation of Development Plan Documents Error! 
Bookmark not defined. 

The Rutland Local Plan ...................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 
Key stages for preparing Development Plan DocumentsError! Bookmark not defined. 
Key stages for preparing Supplementary Planning DocumentsError! Bookmark not defined. 
Key stages for Reviewing the Community Infrastructure Levy .................................. 10 
Neighbourhood Planning .............................................................................................. 11 

Section 3: Who will be involved in the Planning Policy Preparation Process? ............ 12 
Consultees ...................................................................................................................... 12 
The Duty to Co-operate ................................................................................................... 14 
Consultation Database .................................................................................................. 14 
Engaging groups representing community and stakeholder interests ..................... 15 
Key Stakeholders .......................................................................................................... 15 
Engaging under-represented groups ........................................................................... 16 

Section 4: How and when will the community be involved? .......................................... 19 
How the Council will consult ............................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Section 5: Community Involvement in Planning Applications....................................... 24 
Development Control ....................................................................................................... 24 
Pre-Application Advice and Fees ..................................................................................... 24 
Planning Applications ...................................................................................................... 25 
Commenting on a planning application ............................................................................ 26 
Decision Stage ................................................................................................................ 26 
Planning Appeals ............................................................................................................ 27 

Appendix 1: Consultation on Local Plan Documents ..................................................... 28 
Appendix 2: Consultation on Supplementary Planning Documents ............................. 33 
Appendix 3: Consultation on Community Infrastructure Levy ...................................... 35 
Appendix 5: Consultation on Planning Applications ..................................................... 36 
Appendix 6: Glossary ....................................................................................................... 43 
Appendix 7: Further information and advice on planning ............................................. 47 
 

 
 
 
 
  

21



Rutland County Council Statement of Community Involvement 2020 

4 

 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

 

 

Section 1: Introduction 

 
Background 
 

1.1 The Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) was last updated in 2014.  

1.2 Since that time, there have been a number of legislative changes to the planning system and in 

the way personal data is held and processed and it is appropriate for the SCI to be updated to 

reflect these.  It is also important to learn from previous experience and whether the means through 

which the Council has engaged on plan making and in the consideration of planning applications 

remains effective. More recently, a requirement1 has been introduced which requires the SCI to be 

reviewed at least every five years. 

1.3 This Review also includes temporary changes which need to be made to the SCI to address the 

impact of Covid-19 on the planning process. This includes reflecting national changes to planning 

legislation for both the plan making process and Development Management function. These 

changes will ensure that the Council can continue to determine planning applications and make 

progress on the Local Plan Review and Neighbourhood Plans. All of which will enable the County 

to respond positively to address the inevitable economic impact of Covid-19. 

1.4 Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) including Rutland County Council are required to produce a SCI 
under section 18 (Part 2) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 
 

1.5 The minimum requirements for consultation on planning policy documents and planning 
applications are set out in The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
(the Local Planning Regulations)2  in the case of planning policy documents and the Town and 
Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) Order (DMPO) 3  for planning 
applications. 

 
1.6 The Rutland SCI reflects these statutory requirements and sets out in Appendices 1- 5 the 

minimum consultation required for both plan making and planning applications. Additional 
methods of consultation and community engagement may be used for different documents at 
different stages, however these are not prescribed within the SCI to allow flexibility to respond to 
changing circumstances and specific issues. 

 
1.7 As a number of the changes made to the SCI have been made in direct response to the Covid19 

pandemic, the SCI will be reviewed again when restrictions have been lifted.  
 

T

                                                           
1 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning)(England)(Amendment) Regulations 2017 

2 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 

3 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 

22

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/767/contents/made


 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

2 

 

 

Purpose of the SCI 

 
1.8 The SCI sets out how the Council intends to engage with communities through the 

planning process.  This includes the preparation and revision of Development Plan 

Documents (DPDs) (commonly referred to as local plans) and Supplementary Planning 

Documents (SPDs) and procedures for consulting the public on planning, listed building 

and other applications. 

1.9 ItsThe purpose of this SCI is to identify the standards to be met and provide a clear 

public statement enabling people to know how and when they will be involved in the 

preparation of planning policy documents and how they will be consulted on planning 

applications. For planning policy documents the SCI sets out the minimum standards 

required for each type of documents at each stage in plan making – Appendices 1-4 (for 

Neighbourhood plans this only relates to the consultation stage which the Council is 

responsible for Regulation 16). It is likely that the Council will do more than the stated 

minimum depending on the issues and the stage in the process. 

1.10 Having clear arrangements for carrying out consultation will help to establish a two-way 

process between the community and the Council. It will provide the community with 

opportunities to help shape their local areas and create a transparent, fair and open 

planning process. The SCI sets out the techniques available and which are likely to be 

used. However it is important to retain a degree of flexibility so that methods can be 

appropriately tailored to the planning document in question, to allow for changes in the 

regulations or best practice guidance, and to reflect that new methods of communication 

and engagement may become available over the life of the document. 

1.11 The Council will prepare a Statement of Consultation for each DPD and SPD it prepares, 

setting out who was consulted at each stage together with a summary of the main issues 

raised in any representations and how these have been taken into account.   

 

23



 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

3 

 

                          

Need for review 

 
1.12 The review of the Council’s SCI takes account of the changes in legislation and 

regulations since the last review.  The Government is committed to increasing the ability 

of local communities to influence planning decisions and future development in their 

areas by making the planning system simpler and more accessible.  The National 

Planning Policy Framework (2019) says that (paragraph 16): 

 “Plans should: 
 c) be shaped by early, proportionate and effective engagement between plan-makers 

and communities, local organisations, businesses, infrastructure providers and 

operators and statutory consultees.” 

 

1.13 On 13th May and 15th July 2020 Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 

Government (MHCLG) published temporary measures designed to make ensure the 

continued operation of the planning system. These measures include a change to the 

local plan Regulations and updates to the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) 

in relation to the process for Local Plan preparation and the making of temporary 

changes to an SCI to allow progress on plan making to continue4  In particular the NPPG 

states that: 

 Paragraph: 077 Reference ID: 61-077-201200513 

Where any of the policies in the Statement of Community Involvement cannot be 

complied with due to current guidance to help combat the spread of coronavirus 

(COVID-19), the local planning authority is encouraged to undertake an immediate 

review and update the policies where necessary so that plan-making can continue.  

Paragraph: 079 Reference ID: 61-079-20200715 

These regulations make temporary changes to how documents are required to be made 

available under regulation 35 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 

(England) Regulations 2012 (“the 2012 Regulations”). They temporarily remove the 

requirement on a local planning authority to make documents available for public 

inspection at the authority’s principal office and at such other places as the authority 

considers appropriate. They also make temporary changes to regulation 36 of the 2012 

Regulations to remove the requirement on a local planning authority to provide hard 

copies of documents made available under regulation 35. Documents are still required 

to be made available on the local planning authority’s website. This modification will 

apply until 31 December 2020. 

And Paragraph: 080 Reference ID: 61-080-20200715 

                                                           
4  NPPG Paragraph: 076 Reference ID: 61-076-201200513 to Paragraph: 078 Reference ID: 61-078-201200513 

24



 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

4 

 

Local planning authorities should consider how they can continue to promote effective 

community engagement by means which are reasonably practicable, in particular to 

reach those sections of the community that do not have internet access. Paragraphs 76-

79 of this guidance set out how local authorities can review and update their Statements 

of Community Involvement to provide any temporary amendments that are necessary 

to allow plan-making to progress and to engage sections of the community that do not 

have internet access. 

There are no requirements in legislation for the Local Planning Authority to consult when 

reviewing and updating the SCI, and Rutland’s current SCI makes no commitment to 

consult on future changes to it. However the Council will undertake four weeks 

consultation on this review before considering its adoption 

Changes in consultation methods 

1.14 The Covid-19 pandemic has affected all aspects of the implementation of the 
Council’s statutory planning functions. In particular it has affected the ability to make 
documents available in public places including local libraries, hold exhibitions, 
circulate leaflets, attend forums or  meetings and the submission of paper based 
representations as well as the ability for people and groups to meet together to 
prepare joint responses to applications and DPDs.  

 
1.15 MHCLG and the Planning Advisory Service has issued clear advice that Local 

Planning Authorities should forge ahead with the preparation of local plans as these 
will be key to enabling economic recovery which will be necessary once the 
pandemic is over. The changes that have been made to national planning guidance 
and legislation have been made to support LPAs to continue with both the plan 
making and decision making processes.  

 
1.16 In making the changes to legislation and guidance the NPPG also requires LPAs to 

consider how they can continue plan making with a focus on electronic and web based 

formats, whilst also making provision to engage with those sectors of the community 

who have no or limited access to the internet. This group has therefore been added as 

an “under–represented groups” in section 3 (paras 3.32 – 3.34). Whilst not exclusively, 

this sector of the Rutland community are primarily older people. Older people’s interest 

groups are also covered by groups listed as both “General Consultation Bodies” and 

“Other Consultees” set out in paragraphs 3.5 and 3.6. To do this, changes need to be 

made to the SCI which will enable the planning process to progress with a focus on 

electronic and web based formats as recommended by the Government 

1.17 The changes outlined in this document provide the opportunity to maintain progress 

with the Local Plan and to continue to determine planning applications in 

circumstances where there are significant limitations on access, movement and face 

to face contact. which make the current provisions of the SCI impossible to implement 

The Statutory Regulations will continue to be met throughout the process and are 

included within this SCI as part of the minimum consultation standard.  

25



 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

5 

 

1.18 Changes to Regulation 355 and to the NPPG regarding the availability of paper copies 

for inspection at the Council’s offices and other locations is temporary until 31st 

December 2020. A subsequent  review of the SCI will therefore be undertaken when 

Covid-19 related changes restrictions are no longer considered necessary. It is 

however recognised that there will continue to be a focus on electronic, web 

based and virtual methods of consultation going forward.  The Council will 

continue to use its Local Plan newsletter as a means of keeping stakeholders 

informed. 

  

                                                           
5 The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure, Listed Buildings and Environmental 
Impact Assessment) (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/505/made 

26

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2020/505/made


 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

6 

 

 

Section 2: Community Involvement in the Preparation 

of Development Plan Documents 
 

The Rutland Local Plan 
2.1 The Development Plan Local Plan for Rutland is currently made up of a series of 

Development Plan Documents that contain policies and allocations that will promote 

sustainable development in Rutland.  It comprises the Core Strategy DPD (July 2011), 

Site Allocations & Policies DPD (October 2014) and Minerals Core Strategy and 

Development Control Policies DPD (October 2010).  Work is underway on preparing a 

new Rutland Local Plan that when adopted (anticipated in 2021) will replace all of these 

documents.  The new Local Plan will contain strategic and other policies and allocations 

to guide development in the County up to 2036.  

2.2 The Council will also prepare Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) which will 

provide guidance and information on the implementation of particular policies in the 

Local Plan that will need to be considered when submitting development proposals. 

SPDs do not form part of the statutory Development Plan.  Information on adopted 

SPDs6 can be found on the Council’s website 

 

Key stages for preparing Development Plan Documents 

 
2.3 The Key stages for preparing DPDs are set out in Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended). There are four main stages to the 

preparation of a DPD. The table below summarises the purpose of each stages, 

indicating the role of community involvement at each stage. For further details on the 

minimum requirements for notification and availability of documents which Rutland 

County Council will provide at each stage see Appendix 1. 

 
 
 
Involve the 
community 

Stage 1 – Preparation (early engagement) (Regulation 
18) 

 Collecting evidence through various sources and 
publicise at an appropriate early stage in the 
process 

 Notify and work with groups, organisations and 
residents 

 Consider issues and alternatives 

 Prepare content of draft document and provide 
feedback where possible 
 
 
 

 Stage 2 – Publication (Regulation 19) 

                                                           
6 https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/supplementary-
planning-documents-spd/ 

27

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents-spd/


 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

7 

 

 
Consult with 
the community 

 

 Statutory stage - 6 weeks (minimum) to make 
representations about the Development Plan 
Document; sustainability appraisal and/or supporting 
evidence   

 Documents (including evidence base) made 
available for inspection on the Council’s website 

 Representations should address issues of 
“Soundness” and “Legal Compliance” 
 

 
 
 
 
Independent 
inspection 

Stage 3 – Submission for Independent Examination 

 Representations received at Stage 2 summarised 
and made publicly available.  

 ‘Statement of Community Consultation’ to 
demonstrate how the Statement of Community 
Involvement has been followed 

 Development Plan Document submitted to Secretary 
of State for independent examination 
(Supplementary Planning Documents to Council for 
adoption) 

 Representations submitted to Secretary of State 

 Independent examination 

 Planning Inspector issues report.  

 Adopted by Council if agreed as ‘sound’ by Inspector 
 

Monitor  Final plan is regularly monitored, to ensure that the 
plan is achieving its aims 

 Plan must be reviewed at least every 5 years or 
sooner where necessary 
 

 

2.4 In summary these are set out in stages: 

a) Public Participation in preparation of DPDs (Regulation 18)  

There is considerable flexibility in how the initial stages of plan preparation may be 

carried out but typically it may involve two stages of consultation on draft documents, if 

the Council considers it appropriate, consisting of Issues and Options and Preferred 

options.   

These stages involve evidence gathering and targeted consultation with key 

stakeholders to identify main issues and options and to seek views about what the local 

plan ought to contain including the production of and consultation on draft documents 

as appropriate. 

A Sustainability Appraisal (SA) Report will be prepared which identifies and reports on 

the likely significant effects of the plan and the mitigation measures which can be taken 

28



 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

8 

 

to reduce them.  The SA process is iterative and is therefore reported and updated 

throughout preparation of the plan including at Adoption.  

Publication of a DPD for making representations (Regulation 19) 

The Publication (or Pre-Submission) version of the Plan is the final version of the 

document which the Council intends to submit for public examination. This version will 

be developed having considered the views and evidence gathered under Regulations 

18. 

The proposed document will be published for a minimum of six weeks.  Views will be 

sought on whether the document is “sound” and legally compliant. 

The Council will prepare a Statement of Consultation setting out how the community has 

been consulted at each stage together with a summary of the main issues raised in any 

representations and how these have been taken into account.   

b) Submission of documents to the Secretary of State (Regulation 22) 

The Plan and relevant supporting information, including representations made about the 

Regulation 19 consultation, will then be submitted to the Secretary of State for 

independent examination. 

c) Examination process  

An Inspector, appointed by the Secretary of State, will examine the document and 

consider whether the preparation of the plan has been legally compliant. 

Any person with an outstanding representation from the Regulation 19 stage will be 

notified of the Examination process.  

Any person who has made a representation seeking a change to the plan, within the 

deadline set by the LPA for regulation 19 consultation responses, has a right to be heard 

at Examination in accordance with section 20(6) of the Planning and Compulsory 

Purchase Act (PCPA) 2004  

The Planning Inspector will determine the issues that they wish to consider through 

Hearing sessions and will determine who is invited to participate at these sessions. 

Hearing sessions may be held virtually.  

If the Plan is legally compliant the Inspector will then consider whether the document is 

‘sound’.  The Plan will be considered ‘sound’ if it is positively prepared, justified, effective 

and consistent with national policy. 

Where the Inspector identifies that Main Modifications (MMs) may be needed, the nature 

and likely extent of these will be discussed at the examination hearings.  Following the 

hearings, the Inspector will ask the Council to produce a schedule of proposed MMs and 

to carry out public consultation on these to ensure anyone whose interests may be 

affected by the modification has an opportunity to comment on it.  The consultation 

period will normally last for a minimum of 6 weeks. 

29



 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

9 

 

The Inspector  prepares an Inspector’s Report with recommended modifications which 

the Council must follow if it is to adopt the Plan  

d) Adoption of DPD 

The Council will publish and consider the Inspector’s Report and whether it wishes to 

adopt the Plan as recommended by the Inspector.  If the Council decides to adopt the 

Plan, it will be adopted by the Full Council. 

 

 

Key stages for preparing Supplementary Planning Documents 
 
2.5 SPDs have fewer stages in their preparation and are not subject to independent 

examination.  However, their preparation still requires community involvement: The 

table below summarises the key requirements for each stages, indicating the 

purpose of community involvement at each stage. For further details on the 

minimum requirements for notification and availability of documents which 

Rutland County Council will provide at each stage see Appendix 2. 

 
 
 
Involve the 
community 

Stage 1 – Preparation (early engagement)  

 Develop a range of evidence to support the 
document 

 Notify and work with relevant stakeholders and 
interested parties 

 Consider issues and alternatives 

 Prepare content of draft document and provide 
feedback where possible 
 
 
 

 
 
Consult with 
the community 

Stage 2 – Consultation 
 

 Minimum 4 weeks consultation  

 Representations considered and a revised 
documents prepared  

 
 
Adoption 

Stage 3 – Adoption 

 Council adopt final version 

 Notify consultees 

 Notice of adoption published on Council website  
 

  
 

a) Preparation 

30



 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

10 

 

  This stage involves the Council developing a range of evidence to support the 

document.  This may involve informal consultation with relevant stakeholders 

and interested parties where appropriate. 

  A screening report will be prepared to establish whether a Strategic 

Environmental Assessment (SEA) and/or Habitats Regulations Assessment 

(HRA) is required.  Where considered necessary, these will be undertaken 

throughout the preparation process. 

 A draft version of the Supplementary Planning Document is prepared based on 

the evidence collected. 

b) Consultation 

  The Council will consult on a draft document for at least 4 weeks.  Any 

representations made during the consultation period will be considered and the 

document revised, where appropriate, to take into account the comments 

received. 

c) Adoption 

 The final version of the Supplementary Planning Document will be adopted by 

the Council.  Notice of the adoption will be published on the Council’s website.  

Consultee’s that have requested it will be notified. 

 

Key stages for Reviewing the Community Infrastructure Levy 
 
2.6 The Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a charge that local authorities can choose 

to levy on specified new development in their area and which can be used to help deliver 

a wide range of infrastructure needed to support growth in their area.  The Council must 

demonstrate an infrastructure funding gap; charges will be based on the type of 

development and be set out in a charging schedule. The Council adopted its CIL 

charging schedule in January 2016.7 

2.7 Government guidance is that the preparation or review of CIL charging schedules should 

be undertaken at the same time as preparing a Local Plan.  The Council are not 

proposing to review the charging schedule at present.  Should a review be commenced 

at some point in the future this would be undertaken in accordance with the following 

stages set out in the Community Infrastructure Regulations 2010 (as amended). For 

further details see Appendix 3. 

 

 

                                                           
7 https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/community-
infrastructure-levy-cil/ 

31

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/community-infrastructure-levy-cil/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/community-infrastructure-levy-cil/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/community-infrastructure-levy-cil/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/community-infrastructure-levy-cil/


 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

11 

 

2.8 a) Preparation 

 The Council will develop appropriate evidence base to support the document.  

This will involve informal consultation with relevant stakeholders and interested 

parties such as developers and other service providers to gain views on matters 

to take into account when setting the CIL 

b) Consultation 

 The Council will publish a draft charging schedule on which representations can 

be made.  This consultation will be for a minimum of 6 weeks.  These will be 

taken into account by the Council prior to its submission for an independent 

examination.  . 

c) Examination and Adoption 

 The draft charging schedule will be submitted with relevant supporting 

information to a suitably qualified examiner.   

 Objectors to the document may be allowed to appear at the examination.  

Recommendations suggested in the Examiner’s Report may be binding on the 

Council.  If there are significant issues, the Council may be required to withdraw 

the charging schedule and re-submit a revised version to a fresh examination. 

Should the Council decide to cease charging CIL there is a requirement to publish a 

statement setting out the implications of doing so and invite representations on the 

proposal. This consultation would be for a minimum of 4 weeks. 

Neighbourhood Planning 
 
2.9 The Localism Act 2011 introduced the ability for town and parish councils to shape new 

development by preparing a Neighbourhood Plan and granting planning permission 

through Neighbourhood Development Orders and Community Right to Build Orders.  

Neighbourhood Plans can be short and simple or go into considerable detail and include 

the allocation of sites.  They set out local planning policies for that neighbourhood area. 

Neighbourhood Plan have to be in general conformity with national policy and the 

strategic elements of the County Council’s local plan, they cannot propose less 

development than that proposed by the Council’s Local Plan. 

2.10 If the Plan is agreed by the local community in a referendum, it will become part of the 

Development Plan and be used in the determination of planning applications.  

2.11 The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) sets out the 

requirements for publicity and consultation in relation to the preparation of 

Neighbourhood Plans and Neighbourhood Development Orders.  The approach taken 

to engaging and involving local residents, business and other stakeholders is a matter 

for the Parish or Town Council and is it up to them to decide how they involve people 

and undertake consultation. 

32



 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

12 

 

2.12 However, the Council does have some statutory functions, which are set out in the 

Regulations.  These include publicising the intention to produce a Neighbourhood Plan 

on its website, undertaking consultations when the Neighbourhood Plan is submitted, 

facilitating the examination, publishing the examiner’s report and organising a 

referendum.  The Council will undertake these functions in accordance with the 

requirements of the Regulations and the principles of this SCI (see Appendix 4 3). 

2.13 The Council also has a duty to provide technical advice and support to communities in 

the preparation of their plans. In Rutland the Council asks Neighbourhood Plan Groups 

to enter into a Service Level Agreement at the beginning of their journey to prepare a 

Neighbourhood Plan. This SLA sets out the technical advice that the Council can provide 

as well as guidance on the role of the Council and local groups in preparing 

Neighbourhood Plans. This SLA also requires Neighbourhood Plan Groups to provide 

the Council with regular updates on progress and a project plan to enable the Council 

to respond in a timely manner to requests for support.   Specifically the Council will 

provide the following: 

 advice on the neighbourhood planning process and legislative requirements 

 Signpost groups to organisations and resources which may be of help 

 sharing information and evidence 

 advice on evidence, assessments/appraisal and conformity with the national 
and local policy framework 

 provision of mapping in accordance with our OS License 

Further information on the support available can be found on the Council’s website8 . 

 

Section 3: Who will be involved in the Planning Policy 

Local Plan Preparation Process? 
 

Consultees 
 
3.1 When preparing DPD’s and SPDs, the Council will seek to engage and consult, where 

appropriate with the general public and the wider community.   

3.2 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as 

amended) specify a number of organisations that must be consulted. These 

organisations are referred to as ‘specific consultation bodies’ and ‘general consultation 

bodies’.  

                                                           
8 https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/neighbourhood-
planning/neighbourhood-planning-and-guidance/ 

33

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/neighbourhood-planning/neighbourhood-planning-and-guidance/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/neighbourhood-planning/neighbourhood-planning-and-guidance/


 
 Statement of Community Involvement – Second Review 

 

 

13 

 

3.3 The lists below refer only to types of group rather than naming every individual group 

and organisation.  This is to ensure that the Statement of Community Involvement does 

not contain out of date information, these lists are not exhaustive. 

3.4 Specific consultation bodies include Town and Parish Councils and Parish Meetings, 

neighbouring Local Authorities utilities and health providers and organisations such as 

Historic England, Environment Agency and Natural England. It is the responsibility of 

Town and Parish Councils and Parish Meetings to ensure that their contact details are 

up to date.  https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgParishCouncilDetails.aspx?bcr=1 

3.5 General consultation bodies, include a range of community groups and organisations 

representing Rutland interests, whom the Council considers it appropriate to consult on 

comprising of: 

 Voluntary bodies 

 Different racial, ethnic or 

national groups 

 Different religious groups 

 Disabled persons groups 

 Business groups 

3.6 Other consultees have been identified in addition to specific and general consultation 

bodies to ensure that local groups, organisations and individuals in Rutland have the 

opportunity to become involved in the preparation of the Local Plan planning policy 

documents. The Council will try to maintain contact details for these consultees however 

this is dependent upon the Council being made aware of them and provided with up-to-

date contact details. These are grouped under the following headings: 

 Amenity groups  

 Armed Services and Veterans 

 Cultural and Art Groups 

 Built Environment 

 Community 

 Economy 

 Education 

 Groups representing Black 

Asian and Minority Ethnic 

(BAME)  communities  

 Ethnic Minority Groups 

including Gypsies & Travellers 

 Healthcare 

 Youth groups 

 Housing 

 Landowners/Agents 

 Minerals & Waste Operators 

 Natural Environment 

 Older Persons Groups 

 Service Providers 

 Sports & Leisure 

 Transport 

34

https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgParishCouncilDetails.aspx?bcr=1


 

14 

 

The Duty to Co-operate 

 
3.7 The Localism Act 2011 places a duty on Local Planning Authorities and other public 

bodies to co-operate with each other.  The duty requires on-going, constructive and 

active engagement on strategic cross boundary matters in order to maximise the 

effectiveness of the Plan, including considering joint approaches to plan making.  This 

could include joint evidence base documents with adjoining local authorities.   

3.8 Councils must also produce, maintain and update statements of common ground 

documenting the strategic cross boundary matters to be addressed and the progress 

which has been made in cooperating to address these.  These should be produced 

using the approach set out in national planning guidance and be made publicly 

available. 

3.9 The Council will prepare a Duty to Cooperate Statement of Compliance for DPDs 

which will be submitted with the Local Plan to the Secretary of State in order to 

demonstrate how it considers it has satisfied the duty in preparing DPDs the Local 

Plan.  The public examination of the DPD will assess whether the Council has complied 

with the duty to cooperate. 

 

Consultation Database 

 
3.10 To manage the consultation process and to ensure records are up to date, the Council 

maintains a mailing list database with the relevant contact details of the various bodies 

to be consulted.  This includes those that have either commented upon previous 

consultation documents or expressed an interest in being involved with the preparation 

of the Local Plan. In 2018 in compliance with the General Data Protection Regulations 

(2018) (GDPR) the Council contacted all those on the Local Plan mailing list asking them 

to confirm that they wished to remain on the list. All subsequent consultation response 

forms have included information about how data is stored and processed in accordance 

with the GDPR.   

3.11 Any organisation or individual can be added to the mailing list database at any time by 

contacting the planning policy team and providing their contact details 

(localplan@rutland.gov.uk). Wherever possible electronic contact details will be 

required.  It should be noted, however, that not all bodies and organisations will be 

consulted on every document. 

3.12 The subject matter of the document and the interests of the individual bodies and 

organisations concerned will determine this, for example where a consultation is limited 

to a particular topic or is particularly specialist in nature. 

3.16 The Council will ensure access to its information in accordance with the Freedom of 

Information Act 2000, the Data Protection Act 1998 and the storing and processing of 

personal data in accordance with the General Data Protection Regulations (2018)9. 

                                                           
9 For the Planning Policy Privacy Notice see https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-
control/planning/planning-policy/planning-policy-including-housing-strategy/ 

35

mailto:localplan@rutland.gov.uk
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/planning-policy-including-housing-strategy/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/planning-policy-including-housing-strategy/


 

15 

 

Information and comments provided to the Council through consultation on the Local 

Plan DPDs and SPDs will be made publicly available, unless there are specific and 

justifiable reasons for it to be confidential.  

3.17 The Council may publish letters and completed web forms which are submitted as part 

of Local Plan planning consultations on the Council’s website.  Contact details such as 

email and telephone numbers will be removed, however individual names and 

organisations will be published.  Original documents will be retained at the Council 

Offices where all information will be available for public inspection.  

 

Engaging groups representing community and stakeholder interests 

 
3.18  At an early stage, it is important to involve the local community in the preparation of 

planning policy documents.  This is essential to achieve local ownership of the planning 

policies for Rutland.   

Key Stakeholders 

 
3.19 Key stakeholders include general and specific bodies as set out in the 2012 Local 

Planning Regulations where considered appropriate and may include interest groups 

and other organisations including local businesses or any organisation or person who 

has an interest in the development of land. 

3.20 The Council has identified the following key bodies representing community interests in 

Rutland:  

a)  Town and Parish Councils 

Town and Parish Councils and parish meetings offer an important means by which 

the local community can be consulted at formal and informal stages.  These bodies 

will be consulted through a variety of means including parish briefings (including 

virtual briefings), email and other meetings and events.    

b) Rutland Water Partnership 

Rutland Water Partnership is a group of stakeholders that meet to discuss matters 

concerning Rutland Water and the surrounding area. 

Engagement with the Rutland Water Partnership will ensure that the various views 

of organisations representing different interests regarding the water are considered. 

c) Voluntary and community sector The Council will consult where appropriate with 

relevant local, voluntary and community groups the on all major planning 

consultations and any proposals that may have a significant effect on their services. 

d) The Uppingham Neighbourhood Forum 
 
The Uppingham Neighbourhood Forum represents the voluntary sector in 
Uppingham.  It meets quarterly and is governed by an Executive Committee of 14 
community groups. 

36



 

16 

 

 
d) The Rutland Consortium 

 
The Rutland Consortium represents the voluntary sector in Rutland.  It comprises 

of local charities and trusts within the County.  

 

Engaging under-represented groups  
 
3.21 The Council’s vision is to engage with all sections of the community, but some sections 

of the community do not usually engage are not usually involved in the planning process.  

Consultation will be helped by ensuring, as far as possible, that documents are produced 

in a clear, concise and understandable manner. A local plan newsletter will also be 

prepared to provide a quick and easy guide to the Local Plan as it develops. 

3.22 The groups identified as falling into this category of “under-represented groups” are set 

out below. Details on and how they may can be engaged in the Local Plan process is 

also considered. This is not an exhaustive list and other methods of engaging these 

groups will be used where appropriate.below 

3.23 Young people - The Council is keen to encourage the involvement of more young 

people in the preparation of the local plan.  This will take place through engagement with 

youth groups through direct contact with groups who are active in the County using 

social media; newsletters; and informal feedback sessions. 

3.24 Rutland Youth Council – This is a forum for young people representing all the 

secondary schools in Rutland. The Rutland Youth Council is a formal decision making 

and discussions group made up of young people from across Rutland. The main aim of 

the forum is to discuss issues that affect young people and take action on 

them.  Engagement will be through publicity and meetings, as necessary.   

3.25 The Rural Community - Rutland has a high level of car ownership but there are still 

members of the rural community that, for a variety of reasons, are not mobile and have 

limited access to community services.  

3.26 In order to keep this group informed, the Council will issue press releases to local 

newspapers, radio and regional TV as well as local digital and social media.  It will 

distribute information to parish councils for display on village notice boards and ensure 

the Council’s website is updated regularly. 

3.27 The Town and Parish Councils and parish meetings will also act as an important source 

of information for this group and they will continue to be provided with one paper copy 

of all relevant planning documents.  

3.28 The Council’s mobile library service has in the past provided a further source of 

information for rural communities. Whilst this service is not currently operating it will be 

used as and when it reopens. 

3.29 Minority Groups – Black Asian and Minority Ethnic groups (BAME) Minority Ethnic 

Groups have a relatively small presence in Rutland. Where there are no established 

37



 

17 

 

local groups or apparent informal groupings, involvement and consultation will be 

through regional and national organisations.  

3.30 The number of Gypsies and Travellers is relatively few in Rutland; the Council will take 

practical steps to involve Gypsies, Travellers and Travelling Show Persons wherever 

possible, building on existing relationships where they exist. 

3.31 As well as liaising with Leicestershire & Leicester City Multi Agency Traveller Unit to 

ensure the best approach to engagement is achieved.  Consultation will also be with 

regional and national organisations representing these groups including The National 

Federation of Gypsy Liaison Groups. 

 Vulnerable and Shielded residents – Covid19 

3.32 Measures put in place to shield the most vulnerable residents in the county from the 

impact of Covid-19 means that there are residents who are not currently able to leave 

their homes and may not therefore be able to engage with the Local Plan consultation 

in the usual ways. The Council will seek to proactively engage with those residents 

who are being shielded to support them in accessing and responding to consultation. 

Consultation documents will be available on the website and copies will also still be 

made available in printed format (at cost). Planning Officers will continue to be 

available to help answer questions and direct callers to documents.  

People with no access to the internet 

3.33 As the focus for consultation shifts towards electronic and web-based communication, 

it is important to recognise that a proportion of the County’s population will not have 

access to the internet, a computer or a smart phone and may not therefore be able to 

access consultation documents. This is known as Digital Exclusion. The Councils 

Digital Rutland Strategy 2019-202210 identifies Digital Inclusion as the 6th Aim of the 

strategy. This recognises that digital exclusion disproportionately affects vulnerable 

people, low income groups, the elderly and marginalised communities in society. The 

strategy sets out measures to increase digital skills and support residents who are not 

currently online. This includes the provision of IT courses and adult learning facilities, 

access to the internet at Council buildings and working with other organisations to 

address digital exclusion.   

3.34 In normal circumstances copies of documents can be viewed in the Council Offices 

and libraries on the public computers. Arrangements are currently being made to 

ensure that copies of the Local Plan consultation documents can be made available 

for inspection despite Covid-19 restrictions. This will be subject to a booking system 

which will ensure that social distancing, the appropriate quarantining of documents 

and the cleaning of the inspection venue can be maintained.  Consultation documents 

will also be made available in printed format (at cost or on loan in cases of financial 

hardship) and Planning Officers will continue to be available to help answer questions 

and direct callers to documents. 

                                                           
10 https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-community/digital-rutland/about-digital-rutland/ 

38

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-community/digital-rutland/about-digital-rutland/


 

18 

 

3.35 The Council will publish notice of the consultation in local newspapers.  It will also 

notify local radio and TV media. Town and Parish Councils and Parish Meetings will 

also be asked to publicise the consultation.  In addition notifications will be sent to 

those who have requested to be updated on the preparation of the plan as well as 

those who have previously engaged with the plan making process. In all 

communication formats people without access to the internet will be advised to contact 

the Council’s customer service team who will use a triage system to direct callers to 

the most appropriate team or make arrangements for the inspection of consultation 

material. 

Equalities Impact Assessment 

3.36 The Council has undertaken   will undertake a an Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) 

screening of this SCI and this has been considered within the revised document.  An 

EqIA will be undertaken on all new policy documents to ensure due regard to the 

general duty of the Equality Act 2010 has been given. 

  

39



 

19 

 

Section 4: How and when will the community be 

involved? 

 
How the Council will consult 

 

4.1 Planning legislation sets out the minimum requirements for public participation when 

preparing Local Plan documents and Supplementary Planning Documents DPDs and 

SPDs.  This includes making consultation documents available at the Council’ Principal 

offices and on the website.  Local Plan DPD consultations will be a minimum of six 

weeks.  Consultation on SPD’s will be a minimum of four weeks. The Council considers 

these to be the minimum standards and aim to do better than the minimum requirements 

where appropriate and possible.  In light of the restrictions in place in response to 

Covid19 it is recognised that a number of the “normal” consultation techniques will not 

be available and new methods of engaging in virtual and electronic formats will be 

developed. 

4.2 The Council will notify organisations and individuals where appropriate of any 

consultation events electronically or where a person does not have an email address 

,letters notifications by post will be sent to them to inform them of the consultation.  The 

preferred method of consultation is by email as this will help reduced the spread of the 

disease and supports the ability of the planning team to work remotely, it also enables 

those involved in the Local Plan Development Plan process to be regularly updated 

during current restrictions. The submission of representations on electronic forms will in 

turn facilitate the Examination process and support the work of the Planning Inspector.  

Potential Consultation Methods 
 

4.3 The Council intends to use a range of methods to inform and consult with the community 

in preparing planning policy documents. 

4.4 Some potential Section 3 sets out the ways in which we will try to engage those groups 

who tend not to engage with planning consultations and the table below outlines 

additional methods of consultation which the Council may use, together with the main 

benefits of each method are set out on the next page.  It is important to note that not all 

of these methods will be relevant or applicable to each stage or for every document. and 

some  Some of these techniques may not be possible as Covid19 restrictions remain in 

place, for clarity the methods which are likely to be affected by Covid-19 restrictions are 

shaded within the table.  

4.5 The list below is not therefore exhaustive but gives an indication of the different 

techniques which might be used. Appendices 1- 4 set out  the minimum consultation 

requirements which will be used for each stage in preparing the Local Plan 

(Appenidx1); SPDs (Appendix 2) CIL (Appendix 3) and Neighbourhood Plans (Appendix 

4) : 

  

40



 

20 

 

Table 1: Potential Consultation methods for preparing planning policy documents  
 

Method Benefits 

Make documents and supporting 

information available on the 

Council’s website.  

Information easily accessible from people’s own 
homes and businesses, 24 hours a day. 

Make provision for online 

engagement through the availability 

of all relevant documents and the 

submission of representations online 

and in electronic format. 

Easy access to consultation documents alongside 
online response forms which allow for submission of 
representations in a user friendly format which meets 
the requirement of Planning Inspectorate (PINs) 
available 24 hours a day. 

On-line response form on the 

Council’s website.  

Comments can be submitted to the Council quickly 
at any time of day, with no postage costs. Follows a 
standard format which allows responses to  be 
entered directly into copied accurately  the database 
and facilitates the Examination process. 

Dedicated e-mail address for Local 

Plan matters. 

Means of submitting comments and contacting the 
Council for further information and assistance. 

Provide Planning Officer call-back 

service to respond to enquiries. 

Using a triage system to identify the most 
appropriate way to respond to a customer call or 
enquiry which will include speaking to a planning 
officer where appropriate. 
 

Local Plan eNewsletter Online newsletter informs people of Local Plan 
progress and encourages further involvement in the 
process. 

Make hard copy and electronic 

copies of documents and supporting 

information available at the Council’s 

Principal Office in Oakham.  

Access to consultation documents free of charge.  
This may be by appointment only during opening 
hours. 

Make documents and supporting 

information available at the public 

libraries in Rutland. *  

Access to consultation documents in printed and 
electronic format free of charge and access to the 
submission of electronic representations available 
during opening hours. 
Subject to libraries reopening to offer a full range of 
services. 
 

Make copies of consultation 

documents or extracts of documents 

and printed response forms available 

on request.  

To support those who do not have access to the 
consultation documents via the internet or in 
electronic format. 
This service will be available by telephone and 
through the Customer Service centre during opening 

41



 

21 

 

Method Benefits 

A charge will be made for printed 

documents and postage (in 

accordance with the Council’s 

Schedule of Fees and Charges), 

except in cases of financial hardship. 

hours. 
 

Hold exhibitions* (Including the use 

of virtual exhibitions, webinars and 

online presentations) where practical 

& appropriate.  

 

Publicises information and enables early 
engagement in options in a user friendly way and in 
a variety of locations.  
 
The use and format of exhibitions will be determined 
in relation to the proposed consultation stage, the 
document type and ability to hold such exhibitions. 

Include information in a Summary 
Leaflet where appropriate. 

Provides a brief summary of the document and can  
be delivered circulated to households where 
appropriate, to inform plan preparation progress and 
encourage further involvement in the process.   
 

Distribute information to Parish and 

Town Councils through existing 

available channels. 

Encourage Town and Parish 

Councils and Parish Meetings to 

advertise consultation  

 

Information circulated to all Town and Parish 
Councils and Parish Meetings in Rutland, using 
existing communication channels. 
 
Allows information to be displayed in public locations 
in local towns and villages. 
 
Gives opportunity for representatives of all Town and 
Parish Councils and Meetings in Rutland to raise 
and discuss issues. 
 
Provides opportunity for Town and Parish Councils 
and Meetings to engage with those without internet 
access and support their response 
 
 

Make poster and other display 

materials available on request to 

Town and Parish Councils and 

Parish Meetings. 

Disseminates information effectively to local 
communities. 

Press releases to local newspapers, 
radio and regional tv as well as local 
digital media. 
 

Information to the local community and stimulates 
debate.   With two weekly local newspapers and a 
local radio station Rutland has good media coverage 
which reaches all parts of the community.  
 

Use of social media such as Twitter 
@rutlandcouncil to notify followers of 
Local Plan progress and involvement 
opportunities. 

Means of engaging hard to reach groups. Provides 
an opportunity to encourage and facilitate discussion 
with interested parties. 
 

42



 

22 

 

Method Benefits 

Engage Rutland Youth Council and 

use Rutland’s young people’s* 

webpage– 

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-

services/health-and-family/youth-

services/available-services/rutland-

youth-council/ 

 

Means of engaging young people in Rutland to 
promote and raise any awareness of planning issues 
and consultations on planning documents. 

Engage with existing relevant 
partnership, forums and groups such 
as the ‘Rutland Water Partnership’.* 

Using existing forums and partnerships helps to 
engage with and capture the views of groups on 
specific issues.  The Rutland Water Partnership 
meets regularly and  allows the Council to capture 
views relating to Rutland Water specific issues. 

Engage with target groups, 
community groups and forums, 
including use of meetings, 
workshops and focus groups.* 
 

Gives opportunity for groups to raise and discuss 
issues. 

Notifications sent to those on the 
Local Plan mailing list  (Notifications 
by post letters will only be used 
where no email address is 
available). 

Formal means of communication with those on 
database; ensures communication is received. 
 
Those on mailing list will be actively encouraged to 
provide email contact details to reduce paper 
.notifications.  Notification by post Letters will still be 
used where electronic means of communication are 
not possible. 
 

* Assuming that this method can be safely carried out in a way which is consistent with 
Covid-19 restrictions. This may mean ensuring social distancing measures are in place and 
through the use of web base, virtual and electronic formats.  

 

4.5 Further details of how these methods will be applied to development plan documents 

(DPDs) and supplementary planning documents (SPDs) are shown in Appendices 1 – 

2 4   These identify the minimum requirements at each stage  including the statutory 

requirements for consultation at each stage. 

• Statutory requirements for consultation (what we must do) 
• Options for additional publicity and community involvement (what we could or will do 

extra) 

4.6 Details about when consultation will take place on each document are shown in the 

Local Development Scheme (LDS)11. Progress against the key milestones for 

                                                           
11 https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/local-
development-scheme/ 

43

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/health-and-family/youth-services/available-services/rutland-youth-council/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/health-and-family/youth-services/available-services/rutland-youth-council/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/health-and-family/youth-services/available-services/rutland-youth-council/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/health-and-family/youth-services/available-services/rutland-youth-council/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/local-development-scheme/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/local-development-scheme/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/local-development-scheme/


 

23 

 

document preparation are reported annually in the Authority Monitoring Report 

(AMR)12. 

4.7 Further information and advice on the planning process is available through a number 

of sources (see Appendix 7). 

  

                                                           
12 https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/annual-
monitoring-report/ 

44

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/annual-monitoring-report/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/annual-monitoring-report/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/annual-monitoring-report/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/planning-policy/annual-monitoring-report/


 

24 

 

Section 5: Community Involvement in Planning 

Applications 
 
Development Control  

5.1 The Council’s Development Control Section is responsible for processing all planning 

applications within the County.  This section of the Statement of Community Involvement 

sets out the Council’s proposed approach for involving statutory bodies and the community 

in the planning application process. 

5.2 Planning applications include new development, tree applications and 

telecommunications proposals, applications for minerals or waste proposals, listed 

building and conservation area and Advertisement consent, as referred to in Appendix 

5. Opportunities exist for the community and stakeholders to be informed and consulted 

on development proposals. 

5.3 The three main stages in this process are  

 Pre-application 

 Planning Application 

 Planning Appeals 

 

Pre-Application Advice and Fees 

5.4 The Council encourages pre-application discussions for certain types of development 

before making a formal application.  The objective of these discussions is to establish 

whether the principle of the development is acceptable and to clarify the format, type 

and level of detail required enabling the Council to determine the application. 

5.5 As a result of the Localism Act 2011, developers are now required to consult 

communities before submitting certain planning applications for large scale   

development proposals.  This gives local people a chance to comment which can then 

be taken into account by the developer in finalising their planning application. The 

Council will also encourage developers to undertake voluntary pre-application 

discussions and consultations with the local community prior to submitting formal 

planning application in accordance with the advice contained within the national planning 

practice guidance. 

5.6 Since January 2012, the Council has formal procedures in place for dealing with pre-

application planning advice.  The formalisation of this stage with appropriate fees allows 

the Council to dedicate time with applicants to improve the quality of development 

schemes. 

45



 

25 

 

5.7 Further guidance on the development control process and charges for pre-application 

advice is available on the Council’s website https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-

services/planning-and-building-control/planning/apply-for-planning-permission/  

 

Planning Applications 

 
5.8 The statutory requirements for publicity for applications for planning permission are set 

out in the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 

(England) Order 2015. 

5.9 This requires the local planning authority to publicise planning applications either by site 

notice and/or by notification to neighbours and sometimes by advertising in the local 

newspaper. 

5.10 Other regulations set out the requirements for applications for listed building and 

conservation area consent and for applications for planning permission affecting the 

setting of a listed building, or demolition within a conservation area. 

5.11 There are a number of ways to consult on planning applications, depending on which is 

most appropriate. Appendix 5 sets out in detail, publicity for planning applications 

published in June 2012. 

5.12 The Council meets the statutory requirements and has an established process for 

publicising planning applications which includes: 

 Letters Notifications by post/email to statutory organisations and interest 

groups 

 Letters Notifications by post to residents/businesses properties adjoining the 

application site 

 Site notices 

 Weekly list published on website 

 Planning applications with plans & document submitted uploaded on the on 

website 

 Advertisements in the local newspaper when required 

 Application available for inspection at the Council offices where required 

 

5.13 Details of all planning applications are available to view on the Council’s website: view 

planning applications.   

It can be used to: 

 View the planning application and associated plans and documents 

46

https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/apply-for-planning-permission/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/apply-for-planning-permission/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/apply-for-planning-permission/
https://www.rutland.gov.uk/my-services/planning-and-building-control/planning/apply-for-planning-permission/
https://publicaccess.rutland.gov.uk/online-applications/?_ga=2.79940119.1621564901.1585842800-995025687.1585842800
https://publicaccess.rutland.gov.uk/online-applications/?_ga=2.79940119.1621564901.1585842800-995025687.1585842800


 

26 

 

 Make comments on an application 

 Search a weekly list of applications and decisions 

 See if appeals have been lodged and any decisions made 

 See recent planning history and property details, including maps and 

constraints. 

 Create an automatic email when new planning application is validated within 

an identified area 

 

 

Commenting on a planning application 

5.14 Comments can be made on the website or in writing direct to the Council or by email 

and are uploaded on to the Council’s website.  The Council will take account of all 

responses received as a result of its consultations on planning applications where the 

issues raised are material planning considerations.   

5.15 The Council can only consider objections or comments which raise relevant planning 

issues, e.g. highway issues, loss of daylight or sunlight or the effect a proposal might 

have on the appearance of the surrounding area. 

5.16 The issue for the planning system is whether or not the proposed use, or development 

of the site, would be acceptable in land use and environmental terms.  Responses 

concerning other issues cannot be taken into account when determining a planning 

application. These matters include, but are not restricted to: 12 

 Loss of value of property; 

 Boundary disputes; 

5.17 The Council has prepared a brief guide on ‘Putting Your Views to the Council’ which 

provides advice on how to comment on a planning application.  This is available on the 

Council’s website Viewing and commenting on a planning application.  

Decision Stage 

5.18 The majority of planning applications are determined by officers under delegated 

powers.  Major or contentious applications can also be determined by the Council’s 

Development Control & Licensing Committee, where the Development Manager or case 

officer considers it appropriate given the nature of the development. 

5.19 However, a Member may request for an application to be determined by Committee but 

this will be subject to additional assessment and the Chairman or vice-Chairman in 

consultation with the Development Manager will decide whether the application should 

go to the Development Control & Licensing Committee.  Further details are available on 

47

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/development_control/search_and_view_applications/comment_on_a_planning_applicat.aspx


 

27 

 

the Council’s website in Part 8 – Scheme of Delegation which is part of the Council’s 

Constitution. 

5.20 Meetings of the Council’s Development Control & Licensing Committee are held 

approximately every 4 weeks.  Applications presented to Committee are accompanied 

by a written report and officer recommendation. 

 

5.21 The applicant/agent for an application will be informed that it will be considered at a 

committee meeting.  Members of the public who have commented on the application will 

also be notified about the committee meeting.  Other interested parties will need to 

monitor the Council’s website or check with Customer Services 5 days before each 

meeting in order to check this. 

5.22 The Council offers all members of the public the opportunity to submit a petition, 

deputation and/or written question to any of its meetings, further information is available 

on the Council’s website. 

5.23 Details of decisions are published on the Council’s website. 

Planning Appeals 

5.24 An appeal may be submitted by the applicant where permission has been refused or 

permitted with conditions which the applicant considers to be unacceptable.  There is 

also a right of appeal if the application has not been determined within the relevant time 

limit. 

5.25 All those who were notified of the original application or submitted comments will be 

informed if an appeal is made.  They also have the opportunity to make further written 

comments, except in the case of Householder Appeals where the Inspector makes the 

decision based solely on all the information on the original application file. 

5.26 For appeals decided by informal hearing or public inquiry, interested parties are also 

given the opportunity to appear before the Inspector at the hearing or inquiry.  The 

Inspectorate will consider the evidence and decide whether to ‘allow’ or ‘dismiss’ the 

appeal.   

5.27 The Planning Inspectorate will inform the Council and interested parties of the outcome.  

The Planning Inspector’s decision is binding on the Council, although it can be 

challenged on a point of law in the High Court.  Third parties do not have the right to 

appeal decisions. 

5.28 Further information is available on the Council’s website and provides links to the 

Planning Inspectorate’s website and to the appeal section on the Planning Portal 

website. 

 

 

48



 

28 

 

Appendix 1: Consultation on Local Plan Documents 
This table sets out the minimum consultation or notification which will be used for each stage in the Plan making process. Additional 

complementary techniques (from table 1 within the SCI) may also be used depending on the stage, nature of the documents and the relevance 

of the consultation method proposed.  

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice 

period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

 

Plan Preparation 

(Regulation 18) 

 

Issues & Options/ 

Preferred Options 

Those bodies or persons that 

the Council considers to have 

an interest in the Plan, such 

bodies will include relevant: 

 specific consultation bodies 
 

 general consultation bodies 
 

 Residents or businesses 
within the area where 
appropriate 

 Informal and on-going 
involvement in plan 
preparation will be 
possible up to its 
publication 
 

 There will be at least 
one ‘formal’ 
consultation period 
during the plan 
preparation, normally 
with a minimum 
consultation period of 6 
weeks (up to a 
maximum of 12 weeks) 

 Engage with/involve as appropriate 

 Rutland Parish and Town Councils 

 Target groups and stakeholders 
 

 Those considered to have an interest will be 
informed by email or letter notifications by post 
setting out: 

- the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed (including an 

electronic copy or link where relevant) 
- advise those without internet access to 

contact the Planning Policy team directly 
to discuss their needs 
 

 Draft Plan(s) and accompanying documents will 
be made available at the Council office, Libraries 
and be published on the Council’s website* 
www.rutland.gov.uk 

 Online response form on Council’s website 
www.rutland.gov.uk  
 

 Copies or extracts of the Plan and response form 
made available in print or electronic format at 
cost and on request. 

49

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

29 

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice 

period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

 

 Dedicated e-mail address 
localplan@rutland.gov.uk for responses and 
enquiries 
 

 Press release to local newspapers , radio and 
regional TV as well as local digital media 

Plan Publication 

(Regulation 19) 

 

Proposed 

Submission Plan 

 All those notified at plan 
preparation stage will be 
notified 
  

 Inform those who 
responded to plan 
preparation consultation 

 

 Statutory period of at 
least 6 weeks 

 A statement of the representations procedure will 
be sent to general and specific consultation 
bodies as required 
 

 Inform appropriate target groups and 
stakeholders by email (or letter notification by 
post) setting out: 
-  the consultation period 
- the plan stage 
- how the plan can be viewed (including an 

electronic copy or link where relevant) 
- advise those without internet access to 

contact the Planning Policy team directly to 
discuss their needs 
 

 Draft Plan(s) and accompanying documents will 
be made available at the Council’s Principle 
Office and on the Council’s website* 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Copies or extracts of the Plan and response form 
made available in print or electronic format at 

50

mailto:localplan@rutland.gov.uk
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

30 

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice 

period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

cost and on request. 
 

 Online response form on Council’s website 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Dedicated e-mail address 
localplan@rutland.gov.uk for responses and 
enquiries 
 

 Press release to local newspapers, radio and 
regional TV as well as local digital media 

Submission of 

Plan to Secretary 

of State 

(Regulation 22) 

 All those notified at plan 
preparation and publication 
stage will be notified that 
the plan has been 
submitted and where it can 
be inspected 
 

 Anyone who has 
specifically asked to be 
notified when the plan is 
submitted 

 Not a consultation 
stage 

 Plan and accompanying documents to be sent 
electronically to the Secretary of State 
 

 Plan and accompanying documents will be made 
available at the Council’s Principle Office and 
published on the Council’s website* 
www.rutland.gov.uk 

 

 A statement will be placed on the Council’s 
website setting out how the plan and 
accompanying documents can be accessed 
 

 Press release to local newspapers  radio and 
regional TV as well as local digital media. 
 

Independent 

Examination 

(Regulation 24) 

 Any person with an 
outstanding representation 
from the plan publication 
(Reg 19) stage 

 Notification about 
examination at least 6 
weeks before the 
opening of the hearing 
 

 Public notice on the Council’s website and a hard 
copy on display at the Council principal office 
setting out where the hearing will be held and the 
name of the Inspector appointed to carry out the 
examination 
 

51

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
mailto:localplan@rutland.gov.uk
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

31 

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice 

period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

 6 week consultation 
period if there are 
main modifications (or 
as required by the 
Inspector) 

 Email (or letter notification by post) to any person 
with an outstanding representation from the plan 
publication (Reg 19) stage. 
 

 In the event of main modifications being 
proposed, notification will be via email and public 
notice on Council’s website and at the Council 
office 

Publication of 

Inspector’s 

recommendations 

(Regulation 25) 

 All persons who requested 
to be notified will be given 
notice that the 
recommendations are 
available 
 

 Not a consultation 
stage 

 Inspector’s recommendations will be made 
available at the Council’s principal office and 
published on the Council’s website* 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Give notice to those persons those who have 
requested to be notified by email or letter 
notification by post 
 

 Press release to local newspapers  radio and 
regional TV as well as local digital media 

 

Adoption of a plan 

(Regulation 26) 

 The Secretary of State 
 

 Anyone who has 
specifically asked to be 
notified when the plan is 
adopted. 

 Not a consultation 
stage 

 As soon as is reasonably practicable after the 
Council adopts a plan, the plan and 
accompanying documents will be made available 
at the Council offices and  on the Council’s 
website* 
 

 Publish notice setting out how the plan and 
accompanying documents can be accessed this 

will be published on Council’s website and at the 
Council office 
 

 A copy of the adoption statement will be sent via 

52

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

32 

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice 

period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

email to the Secretary of State and to anyone 
who has specifically asked to be notified and 
have provided an email address (or contact 
address) 
 

 Press release to local newspapers  radio and 
regional TV as well as local digital media 

* If this stage is reached after 31st December 2020 and the amendments to Regulation 35 and 36 set out in The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 

(England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020 have not been extended documents will also be made available for inspection at the Council’s 

Principal Office.  

53



 

33 

 

Appendix 2: Consultation on Supplementary Planning Documents 
This table sets out the minimum consultation or notification which will be used for each stage in the SPD making process. Additional 

complementary techniques (from table 1 within the SCI) may also be used depending on the stage, nature of the documents and the relevance 

of the consultation method proposed.  

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of consultation/notice 
period 

Minimum consultation or notification 
method 

Preparation and 

Publication of 

Draft SPD 

(Regulation 12) 

Those bodies or persons that the 

Council considers to have an 

interest in the document, such 

bodies will include relevant: 

 

 specific consultation bodies 
 

 general consultation bodies 
 

 Residents or businesses within 
the area where appropriate 

 There will be one ‘formal’ 
consultation period during the  
preparation, normally with a 
minimum consultation period of  
4 weeks  

 Engage with/involve as appropriate 

 Rutland Parish and Town 
Council 

 Target groups and stakeholders 
where relevant 
 

 Those considered to have an 
interest will be informed by email or 
notification by post letter  setting out: 
 

- the consultation period 
- how the document can be 

viewed (including an 
electronic copy or link where 
relevant) 
 

 Draft document will be made 
available at the Council offices, 
Libraries and  published on the 
Council’s website* 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Copies or extracts of the document 
and response form made available 
in print or electronic format at cost 

54

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

34 

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of consultation/notice 
period 

Minimum consultation or notification 
method 

and on request. 
 

 Online response form on Council’s 
website www.rutland.gov.uk  
 

 E-mail address 
localplan@rutland.gov.uk for 
responses and enquiries 

Adoption of SPD 

(Regulation 14) 

 Anyone who has specifically 
asked to be notified when the 
SPD is adopted 

Not a consultation stage  An adoption and consultation 
statement together with the adopted 
SPD, will be made available at the 
Council offices, Libraries and 
published on the Council’s website * 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Anyone who has asked to be 
notified will be sent an email or 
letter notification by post including a 
copy of the Adoption Statement 

* If this stage is reached after 31st December 2020 and the amendments to Regulation 35 and 36 as set out in The Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020  have not been extended, documents will also be made available for inspection at the 

Council’s Principal Office. 

  

55

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
mailto:localplan@rutland.gov.uk
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

35 

 

Appendix 3: Consultation on Community Infrastructure Levy 
This table sets out the minimum consultation or notification which will be used for each stage in the process of reviewing of CIL. Additional 

complementary techniques (from table 1 within the SCI) may also be used depending on the stage, nature of the documents and the relevance 

of the consultation method proposed.  

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

Consultation on 

Draft Charging 

Schedule 

(Regulation 15) 

Those bodies or persons that 

the Council considers to have 

an interest in the document, 

such bodies will include 

relevant: 

 Consultation bodies 

 Residents, businesses, 
voluntary bodies or 
business bodies within the 
area where appropriate 

 

 

 Minimum of 6 weeks  Copy of the draft charging schedule, relevant 
evidence and a statement of the 
representations procedure will be sent to the 
Consultation bodies inviting them to make 
representations  
 

 Copy of the draft charging schedule, relevant 
evidence and a statement of the 
representations procedure available for 
inspection at the Council offices, Libraries and 
published on the Council’s website 
www.rutland.gov.uk 

 

 Local advertisement notice which sets out a 
statement of the representations procedure 
and a statement of the fact that the draft 
charging schedule and relevant evidence are 
available for inspection and of the places at 
which they can be inspected. 

 

 Online response form on Council’s website 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Dedicated e-mail address 
localplan@rutland.gov.uk for responses and 

56

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
mailto:localplan@rutland.gov.uk


 

36 

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

enquiries 

Withdrawal of a 

draft charging 

schedule 

(Regulation 18) 

All those previously consulted 

on the draft charging schedule 

  Publish statement on the Council’s website 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Place notice in the local newspapers 
 

 Remove the draft charging schedule from the 
Council’s website, the Council offices & 
libraries 

Submission of 

documents and 

information to the 

Examiner 

(Regulation 19) 

 Those who requested to be 
notified that the draft 
charging schedule has 
been submitted 

Not a consultation stage  Copy of the draft charging schedule, relevant 
evidence and a statement of the 
representations procedure published on the 
Council’s website www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Give notice to those persons who requested to 
be notified of the submission of the draft 
charging schedule to the examiner that the 
draft has been submitted 
 

 If modified send a copy of the statement of 
modifications to all those consulted on the 
draft charging schedule 

Examination 

(Regulation 21) 

 Those who have made 
representations 

Not a consultation stage  Publish details of the examination and 
Inspector on the Council’s website 

Publication of 

Examiner’s 

recommendations 

(Regulation 23) 

 Those who requested to be 
notified of the examiner’s 
recommendations 

Not a consultation stage  Copy of the examiner’s recommendations 
made available for inspection at the Council 
offices, Libraries and published on the 
Council’s website www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Give notice to those persons who requested to 

57

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

37 

 

Stage Who will be notified? Period of 
consultation/notice period 

Minimum consultation or notification method 

be notified of the publication of the examiner’s 
recommendations and reasons that they have 
been published 

Approval and 

publication of a 

charging schedule 

(Regulation 25) 

 Those who requested to be 
notified of the approval of 
the charging schedule 

  Publish the charging schedule and make 
available for inspection at the Council offices, 
Libraries and on the Council’s website 
www.rutland.gov.uk 
 

 Give notice by advertisement in local 
newspaper of the approval of the charging 
schedule 

 
 

 Give notice to those persons who requested to 
be notified of the approval of the charging 
schedule that it has been approved 
 

 Send a copy of the charging schedule to each 
of the relevant consenting authorities 

58

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/


 

34 

 

Appendix 4: Neighbourhood Planning – Rutland County Council Statutory 

Requirements 
This table sets out the minimum consultation or notification which will be used for each stage in the process of preparing a Neighbourhood Plan 

for which the Council is the responsible body. Additional complementary techniques (from table 1 within the SCI) may also be used depending 

on the nature of the documents and the relevance of the consultation method proposed.  

 
Stage Who will be notified? Period of 

consultation/notice 
period 

Minimum consultation or notification 
method 

Designation of 
Neighbourhood Area 
(Regulation 5) 

 Consult with relevant 
consultees including 
adjoining Parishes, 
statutory bodies13 

 Confirm designation to 
Qualifying Body and 
anyone who made 
representations on 
application 
 

6 weeks Publish application on website 
 
 
Publish designation notice on website 

Publish Submitted Plan 
(Regulation 16) 

 Notify relevant 
consultation bodies 

 

6 weeks Copy of the submitted Plan, relevant 
evidence and a statement of the 
representations procedure available for 
inspection at the Council offices and  
published on the Council’s website* 
 
Online response form 
 
Dedicated email address for responses and 
enquiries 

                                                           
13 If the Parish Council is proposing the area to be designated covers the whole of the Parish there is no requirement to consult as the Council must designate the 
Neighbourhood Area 

59



 

35 

 

 

Publication of Examiner’s 
Report (Regulation 18) 

 Notify: 
- relevant 

consultation bodies 
- Qualifying Body 
- Anyone who has 

specifically 
requested to be 
notified 

- Residents and 
businesses within 
Neighbourhood 
Area 

Not a consultation stage Give notice by email (or letter notification by 
post) of publication of Examiner’s Report and 
Decision Statement 
 
Copy of the Examiners Report and Decision 
Statement available for inspection at the 
Council offices and  published on the 
Council’s website* 

Referendum  Not a consultation stage Publish information statement at least 28 
days before referendum on website 
 

Making Neighbourhood 
Plan (Regulation 20) 

 Notify : 

 anyone who has 
requested to be notified 

 Qualifying Body 
 

Not a consultation stage Give notice by email (or letter notification by 
post) that the Plan has been made and where 
it can be inspected 
 
Copy of made Neighbourhood Plan made 
available for inspection at the Council offices 
and  published on Council website * 
 

* If this stage is reached after 31st December 2020 and the amendments to Regulation 35 and 36 as set out in The Town and Country Planning (Local 

Planning) (England) (Coronavirus) (Amendment) Regulations 2020   have not been extended documents will also be made available for inspection at the 

Council’s Principal Office. 

 
  

60



 

36 

 

Appendix 5: Consultation on Planning Applications 
 

Publicity for planning applications 

1. Publicity for planning applications will take many forms.  Some of these are statutory 

and some are non-statutory.  The Council does publicise well beyond its statutory 

requirements. 

2. A "Planning Application" includes all outline and full applications. 

3. Applications for Lawful Development Certificates, Works to Trees in Conservation 

Areas, Non - Material Amendments,  Discharge of Conditions, Certificates of 

Appropriate Alternative Development, Advertisement Consent, Hazardous 

Substances Consent and Prior Notifications for Agricultural Works and Buildings, 

Demolitions, Telecommunications or Railways will not normally be the subject of 

publicity, except in accordance with paragraph 9.  The only exception is 

Telecommunications Prior Notifications, which do require a site notice.  Publicity for 

Prior Notifications for Demolition and sometimes for Agriculture is the responsibility of 

the applicant. 

4. Applications for Listed Building Consent and Conservation Area Consent will be 

publicised in accordance with the statutory requirements contained in Regulation 5 of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990 (LB 

regulations).  These regulations require a site notice and press advertisement in most 

cases.  The exception would be when works only affect the interior of a Grade 2 Listed 

Building. 

 

Statutory Publicity 

 
 

Nature of Development Publicity to be 
Given 

Regulations 

Environmental Statement Newspaper and Site 

Notice 

Town and 

Country 

Planning  ( 

Development 

Management 

Procedure) 

Order 2015 

Article 15 

(2)(a) 

Does not accord with the  provisions of the 

Development Plan 

Newspaper and Site 

Notice 

DMPO 2015 

Article 15 

(2)(b) 

61



 

37 

 

Affect a Right of Way Newspaper and Site 

Notice 

DMPO 2015 

Article 15 

(2)(c) 

Major development. (unless in 2(a) to 2 (c) 

above) 

(a) The winning and working of minerals or 
the use of land for mineral-working 
deposits; 

(b) Waste development; 
(c) n/a 
(d) n/a 
(e) the provision of dwelling houses where- 

 
(i) the number of dwelling houses 

to be provided is 10 or more; or 
 

(ii) the development is to be carried 
out on a site having an area of 
0.5 hectare or more and it is not 
known whether the 
development falls within 
paragraph (c)(i); 

 

(d) the provision of a building or buildings 

where the floor space to be created by the 

development is 1,000 square metres or more; 

or 

(e) development carried out on a site having 

an area of 1 hectare or more.  

Newspaper and Site 

Notice 

DMPO 2015 

Article 15 (4) 

All other "Planning Applications" (a) By Site 
Notice 
(unless site 
notice is 
required 
under 
Sections 67 
or 73 of the 
Planning 
(Listed 
Buildings and 
Conservation 
Areas) Act 
1990) 

or 

(b) by serving 
notice on any 
adjoining 
owner or 
occupier 

DMPO 2015 

Article 15 (5) 

62



 

38 

 

Lawful Development Certificates, Works to 

Trees in Conservation Areas or covered by a 

Tree Preservation Order, Non – Material 

Amendments, Discharge of Conditions, 

Certificates of Appropriate Alternative 

Development, Hazardous Substances 

Consent and Prior Notifications for 

Agricultural Works and Buildings, Demolitions 

or Railways  

None. - 

Prior Notifications for Telecommunications. 1. Site Notice 
always; 
 

2. A newspaper 
advert only if 
Part 3 of the 
Wildlife and 
Countryside 
Act (1981) 
applies, e.g. 
affects a 
public right of 
way, contrary 
to the 
development 
plan or site 
area exceeds 
1 hectare. 
 

3. If site area 
exceeds 1 
hectare must 
notify all 
adjoining 
owners or 
occupiers. 

Part 16 of the 

Town and 

County 

Planning 

(General 

Permitted 

Development) 

Order 2015. 

Listed Building Consent Application. Newspaper and Site 

Notice, unless works 

are wholly internal 

on a Grade 2 listed 

building. 

Regulation 5 of 

the LB 

Regulations. 

Development affecting the setting of a listed 

building. 

Newspaper and Site 

Notice. 

Section 67 of 

the Planning 

(Listed 

Buildings and 

Conservation 

Areas) Act 

1990.  

63



 

39 

 

Development affecting the character or 

appearance of a conservation area. 

Newspaper and Site 

Notice. 

Section 73 of 

the Planning 

(Listed 

Buildings and 

Conservation 

Areas) Act 

1990. 

 

5. All newspaper advertisements are published in the public notices section of the Rutland Times 

  

64



 

40 

 

Non-Statutory Publicity 

6. Applications for Reserved Matters do not require statutory publicity.  The Council will 

notify adjacent land owners / occupiers.  This will be done via a site notice posted on 

or near the site or by letter. 

7. Neighbour notifications will take place on Planning and Reserved Matters Applications, 

in most cases this will be on a non-statutory, discretionary basis where a site notice 

has been posted near the site. . but on a non-statutory, discretionary basis  They are 

a secondary means of publicity.  The primary method, where one is use will be the site 

notice.  The notifications will be undertaken on the basis of properties that, in the 

opinion of the case officer, are affected to a material extent by the development.  The 

Council does not have property ownership records, so land without any buildings in 

active residential or commercial use will not be notified.  Notifications will normally be 

limited to properties sharing a common boundary with an application site.  For larger 

developments such as a new dwelling it may, at the case officer's discretion, be 

appropriate to notify properties on the opposite side of a road.  For major developments 

the Council cannot hope to notify all who consider themselves affected, but the case 

officer will in such a case give consideration to properties that do not share a common 

site boundary.   

8. Weekly lists of applications are provided for publicity purposes to: 
  

 Amenity societies  

 Local newspapers  

 Local radio  

 Published on the Council's website  

 Parish and town councils  
 

Revised Plans Submitted on a Amendments to Planning Applications 

9. There is no statutory publicity requirement.  Where an application is amended through 

negotiation in a manner which, in the opinion of the case officer, makes no material 

difference to or improves the circumstances for neighbours there is generally no need 

to re-consult them.  The exception would be if the changes are sufficiently major that 

the neighbours might reasonably have expected to be notified, or if the impact on a 

neighbour has worsened. 

 

Advertisement Consents 

10. There is no statutory requirement for publicity for applications for advertisement 

consent. and in general the publicity in paragraph 9 is sufficient The exception is cases 

which, in the opinion of the case officer, result in a material impact on a residential 

property.  For example, an illuminated sign close to and visible from principal rooms in 

a residential property.  In such cases a letter will be sent to those properties the case 

officer considers to be affected by the proposed advert. 

65



 

41 

 

 

  

  

66



 

42 

 

Non – Material Amendments 

11. The applicant is responsible for notifying anyone with an ownership interest.  As the 

amendment is non – material then by definition it should not affect anyone.  No wider 

publicity is therefore required. 

 Discharge of Conditions 

 

12. This is a matter of detail and the key elements of the development are already 
approved.  No publicity is therefore required. 
 

 

 Works to Trees Covered by a TPO 

 

13. A discretionary site notice will be displayed if any tree is to be felled as this is likely to 

be of wider public interest.  Other tree applications have a more limited effect and no 

publicity is required. 

  

67



 

43 

 

Appendix 6: Glossary 
 

Title Abbreviation Description 

Adoption  The final confirmation of the status of a 
planning policy document   by a local planning 
authority (LPA) 

Authority 
Monitoring Report 

AMR Report on how authority is performing with 
regard to meeting the timetables for 
preparation of Local Plan Development Plan 
documents and the performance of planning 
policies, with the identification of any remedial 
action to be taken if required 

Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy 

CIL Mechanism for securing developer 
contributions towards the cost of providing 
essential community infrastructure.  

Development 
Plan 

 Set of documents which provides the basis for 
determining planning applications.  Comprises 
the adopted Local Plan and other Development 
Plan Documents and neighbourhood plans that 
have been made. The statutory plan that 
provides the basis for determining planning 
applications.  Comprises adopted Local Plans 
and neighbourhood plans that have been 
made. 

Development 
Plan Document 

DPD Planning policy documents which together form 
the statutory Development Plan for the County. 
These are subject to independent examination 
and will form part of the statutory development 
plan for the area when it is adopted.  Sets out 
the planning policy framework against which 
planning applications are assessed. Part of the 
Usually called the Local Plan. 

Development 
Management 
Procedure 
Order   (2015) 

DMPO Sets out the regulations for the development 
management process 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment 

EqIA An evaluation tool which analyses the effect 

that a policy or procedure will have on a 

particular group of people to highlight whether 

their needs are being met and if there are any 

issues requiring further action.  The tool 

promotes equality and aims to ensure there are 

no discriminatory effects. 

Householder 
Planning 
Application 

 Cover small projects like extensions and loft 

conversions 

Householder 
Appeals 

 The applicant who submitted a householder 

planning application has the right to appeal 

against the decision of the Local Planning 

68



 

44 

 

Title Abbreviation Description 

Authority on their planning application if they 

disagree with that decision  

Issues and 
Options 

 Produced during the initial stage of the 
preparation of Development Plan Documents. 

Local 
Development 
Scheme 

LDS The Council’s three-year programme for 
preparing Local  Development Plan Documents 
Part of the Local Plan which will form the 
Statutory Development Plan 

Local Plan  A Development Plan Document (DPD) which 
can consist of either strategic or non-strategic 
policies, or a combination of the two.  They are 
subject to an independent examination by a 
planning inspector and are prepared in 
consultation with the local community. When 
adopted the Local Plan forms part of the 
statutory Development Plan against which 
planning applications are determined 

Localism Act 
2011 

 The Localism Act aims to shift  power away 
from central government and towards local 
people, communities and councils. Contains 
provisions intended to simply and clarify the 
planning system. 

National Planning 
Policy Framework 

NPPF Sets out the government’s planning policies 
and how these are expected to be applied. . 

Neighbourhood 
Plan 

NP A plan prepared by a Town/Parish Council or 
neighbourhood forums for a specific 
neighbourhood area. They are subject to 
community consultation, an independent 
examination by an examiner and a local 
referendum process. Once made, these 
documents form part of the statutory 
development plan for the area 

Neighbourhood 
Development 
Order 

 Enables the community to grant planning 
permission for development it wishes to see 

Planning 
Inspectorate 
(PINS) 

  Executive agency of the Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government.  
Responsible for  determining outcome of 
planning and enforcement appeals and holding 
examinations into local plans. 

Public 
Examination 

 The Local Plan will be examined by an 
independent Inspector whose role it is to 
assess whether the plan has been prepared in 
accordance with the Duty to Co-operate, legal 
and procedural requirements and whether it is 
sound. 

Referendum (for 
Neighbourhood 
Plans) 

 A vote by which the eligible population in a 
local community decides whether they support 
the Neighbourhood Plan.  

69

http://www.rutland.gov.uk/pp/gold/viewGold.asp?IDType=Page&ID=12119
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/pp/gold/viewGold.asp?IDType=Page&ID=12119
http://www.rutland.gov.uk/pp/gold/viewGold.asp?IDType=Page&ID=12119


 

45 

 

Title Abbreviation Description 

A referendum for a Neighbourhood Plan in 
Rutland will be arranged by Rutland County 
Council Electoral Services and must follow 
statutory regulations and procedures.  

Representation 
 

 A response about a DPD submitted through the 
statutory Regulation 19 consultation, received 
within the advertised consultation period and 
which addresses the Tests of Soundness   

Statement of 
Consultation  

 A report on how the Council has consulted the 
communities on the preparation of the 
development plan documents and 
Supplementary Planning Document, met the 
key milestones set out in the Local 
Development Scheme and the main issues 
raised and responses to those issues. 

Statement of 
Community 
Involvement 

SCI Sets out how the Council will engage and 
consult with the public and other stakeholders 
during the production of the Development Plan 
Documents, Supplementary Planning 
Documents Local Plans and Neighbourhood 
Plans and when dealing with planning 
applications 

Supplementary 
Planning 
Document 

SPD Expand on policies and proposals in DPDs. 
They do not form part of the statutory 
development plan and are not subject to 
independent examination.  SPDs are typically 
produced to provide more detailed guidance on 
how a particular policy should be implemented 
or site developed.  Once adopted, SPDs form 
part of the Local Plan as are non-statutory 
documents which form material considerations 
in the determination of a planning application. 

Stakeholder  A person, group, company, association, etc 
with an interest in, or potentially affected by 
planning decisions in Rutland. 

Sustainability 
Appraisal 

SA Document setting out the appraisal of plans 
and policies to ensure they reflect sustainable 
development objectives. 

Test of 
Soundness 

 A series of questions the Independent 
Inspector asks during the examination of the 
development plan document(s) to assess 
whether it has been positively prepared, 
justified, effective & consistent with national 
policy. 

The Council  Rutland County Council 

Town and 
Country Planning 
(Local Plans) 
(England) 
Regulations 2012 
(as amended) 

 The regulations that set out the process by 
which the Local Plans DPDs and SPDs must 
be prepared 

  

70



 

46 

 

  

71



 

47 

 

Appendix 7: Further information and advice on 

planning 
 

The Planning Portal 

The Planning Portal is the Government's online 'one-stop-shop' for planning and building 
services. It provides information on the planning system, allows you to submit a planning 
application, find out about development in your area, appeal against a decision and research 
government policy. 

Website: www.planningportal.gov.uk 

Email: support@planningportal.gsi.gov.uk 

Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) 

The MHCLG provides general information on the planning system including the latest national 
planning policy, decisions on planning appeals, research and statistics and reform of the 
planning systems. 

Website https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ministry-of-housing-communities-and-
local-government 

Email: contactus@communities.gov.uk 

Postal Address: 2 Marsham Street, London, SW1P 4DF 
 
Telephone Number: 030 3444 0000 
 

Planning Aid England (PAE) 

Planning Aid England provides free, independent and professional planning advice to 
communities and individuals who cannot afford to pay professional fees. It is provided by the 
Royal Town Planning Institute. 

Website: rtpi.org.uk/planning-advice/about-planning-aid-england/ 

Email: info@planningaid.rtpi.org.uk 

Telephone Number: 020 7929 8338 

Postal Address: Planning Aid England, RTPI, 41 Botolph Lane, London EC3R 8DL 
 

The Planning Inspectorate 

The Planning Inspectorate processes planning appeals and holds examinations into 
planning policy documents and the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

Website: www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk 

Postal Address: The Planning Inspectorate, Room 3 O/P, Temple Quay House, 2 The 
Square, Temple Quay, Bristol BS1 6PN 
 

72

http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/
mailto:support@planningportal.gsi.gov.uk
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ministry-of-housing-communities-and-local-government
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/ministry-of-housing-communities-and-local-government
mailto:contactus@communities.gov.uk
file://///cfs1/onecouncil/Places/Planning%20Policy/Planning%20Policy/Local%20Plan/Statement%20of%20Community%20Involvement/SCI%20Review%202020/SCI%20Document/Final%20SCI%20August%202020/rtpi.org.uk/planning-advice/about-planning-aid-england/
mailto:info@planningaid.rtpi.org.uk
http://www.planning-inspectorate.gov.uk/


 

48 

 

Telephone: 0303 444 5000 

73



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

1 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

Q1. The Council has identified groups as under-represented.  Are there any other that should be considered?  

Yes - 72    No - 46 

Please identify any other under-represented groups 

 Armed Forces 

 Veterans 

 Older People, vulnerable people 

 People without internet access or computer 
skills 

 People for whom English is not their first 
language 

 People without public transport 

 Local heritage organisations 

 Local businesses and hospitality  
 Youth Groups 

 Farmers Groups 

 Homeless 

 Learning disabilities 

 Parish Forum 

 LEPs 

 Neighbourhood Planning Groups 

 Secondary Schools  & FE College 

Thank you for the suggestions.  The Council has already 
consulted with a number of these groups, however the 
Council will seek to identify contact details for those 
groups or organisation that are not currently on our 
mailing list. 

None 

Q2. The SCI sets out potential ways to engage with the community. Do you have any additional ways of engaging effectively for this? 

No - 20          Yes - 91 

As you answered yes, please suggest additional ways of engaging effectively. 

75



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

2 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

Essential for there to be a variety of options for 
communicating responses. Online responses may not 
be the preferred or most accessible route for some 
groups, and in order to maximise inclusiveness, an 
email option should be available and also the option of 
filling in a printed form or writing a letter. 
 

Noted.  Whilst online responses is the preferred method 
of responding to consultation, the SCI Review document 
does not exclude the submission of responses by post 
and email. 
 

Clarify that alternatives to 
online form will be accepted 
in consultations on DPDs 
and SPDs 
 

The Parish Councils are a key channel of 
communication with the communities they serve and the 
Parish Council Forum, attended as it is by 
representatives of all the Parishes in the county, plays 
an important role identifying issues and concerns of the 
general population. The Forum has, therefore, a part to 
play in any plan making consultation process 

Noted.  The Parish Forum is an un-constituted body 
which is chaired by the Chairmen of the County Council. 
The Forum was not established for the purpose of 
responding to consultations and therefore does not have 
a role in making representation.  
 
Each individual Town and Parish Council and Parish 

Meeting is individually consulted in their own right as a 

statutory consultee.  The parish briefings originally set 

up by the Council as part of Covid-19 arrangements 

offer an opportunity for parish councils to ask questions 

and communicate with the Parishes. 

 

However, Table 1 sets out that existing partnerships, 
forums and groups will be engaged and through 
meetings, workshops and focus groups. The SCI 
therefore allows the flexibility to use forums such as the 
Parish Forum to engage different groups in the process. 

None 
 

76



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

3 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

Send every Parish Council a hard copy of Consultation 
doc:  enables those without internet to access & is more 
flexible in lockdown. Multi-page documents are not 
designed to be read online. 
 

Each individual Parish Council and Parish Meeting will 
continue to receive a hard copy of the consultation 
document. In addition Parish and Town Councils be 
encouraged to support their local community in 
accessing these documents either by making documents 
available for inspection or loan (subject to a Risk 
assessment and incorporating Covid-19 restriction 
measures.) 

None 

Local libraries are an essential forum for those groups 
who may find computer access difficult. Mobile libraries 
would  be a means of bringing information to groups 
who are unable to travel to central libraries and who do 
not have computer access. 
 

Noted no significant change to previous version. The 
Regulations have been changed to support online and 
web based consultation.  The Council will provide an 
inspection copy at the Council offices. The SCI Review 
document does not exclude the use of libraries to 
access consultation documents. As and when the library 
service reopens the libraries and mobile libraries will be 
considered subject to a risk assessment as additional to 
the minimum requirement.  

None 

Q3 Do you agree that the Council should follow Government advice with respect to the proposed revisions to consultation on Local 
Plan documents? 

Yes - 41     No - 69 

Please suggest how these appendices should be modified taking account of the Government advice. 

The questionnaire should be available in other formats 
to download and submit manually, to cater for those 
with visual impairments or translation requirements if 
English is not their first language. Letter and email 
submissions should be acceptable. 

Noted no significant change to previous version.  Whilst 
online response is the preferred method of responding to 
consultation, the SCI Review document does not 
exclude the submission of responses by post and email. 

Clarify that alternatives to 
online form will be accepted 
in consultations on DPDs 
and SPDs 
 

The Council needs to be far more pro-active in seeking 
people’s views. After all they organise people to update 
the Electoral Register to make sure everybody pays 

Noted. Electoral canvas is a resource (and therefore 
cost) heavy process which is largely funded by the 
government.  Consultation on the Local plan has been 

None 
 

77



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

4 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

Council Tax, why can't they use the same facilities to 
gather people’s viewpoint on this subject? 

ongoing since 2015.  Different methods have been used 
over that period to engage different people. 

Public information sessions by the planning department 
to explain the local plan process. Before and during the 
consultation session. This could be rolled out to 
schools, particularly useful in 6th form colleges to 
encourage participation. 

Noted the use of engaging with older school students.  
Table 1 sets out early engagement options in a variety of 
locations and through different mediums this has 
included exhibitions and drop in sessions as well as 
direct contact with schools and representative groups. 

None 
 
 

Very important that if the RCC genuinely want 
engagement, they need to get out and about to reach 
the "hardest to reach".  

No significant change to previous version.  Table 1 sets 
out a range of methods to inform and consult with the 
local community. It may be helpful to include a table 
setting out stages of Local Plan preparation and role of 
community engagement at each stage. 

Include a table setting out 
stages of DPD and SPD 
preparation and role of 
community engagement at 
each stage. 
 

Do you agree that the Council has set out how it will fulfil its role in providing advice and guidance to neighbourhood plan bodies in 
line with legislative requirements and national planning guidance? 

Yes - 41      No - 69            

As you have answered no, please suggest how the Council should fulfil its role in providing guidance in line with legislative 
requirements and national planning guidance 

A number of responses stated there was not enough 
information available to answer the question. 
 

Noted.  The SCI includes information about the 
Neighbourhood Plan process and the Council’s statutory 
function to support the preparation of them. Additional 
information should be added to paragraph 2.13 to 
summarise the support which the Council provides to 
Neighbourhood Plan Groups.     A link to the relevant 
page on the website is also included as a footnote to 
help signpost to the Council’s Neighbourhood Planning 
web page. 

Clarify what support the 
Council provides to NP 
groups in paragraph 2.13 
including a link to the 
Council’s neighbourhood 
planning web page. 

Neighbourhood plans are not required by law to comply 
with the SCI, so it is not for this document to dictate how 

Noted.  However, once an application for a 
neighbourhood plan is submitted to the Council, the 

None. 

78



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

5 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

community involvement is carried out - SO WHY IS IT 
HERE? 
 

Council are required to undertake functions in 
accordance with the requirements of the Regulations and 
the principles of the SCI as set out in Appendix 3. 
 

A Full Council vote should determine Council's final 
decisions so that all areas can be represented by their 
local Councillor. Neighbourhood Plans should be 
allowed to propose less development than the Local 
Plan. The Neighbourhood Plan framework has no 
strength and RCC should assist local groups to rectify.  
RCC should lobby Govt with residents' views to help 
overturn poor UK planning policy. 
 

Noted.  However, a neighbourhood plan that proposes 
less development would not be in general conformity with 
national policy (NPPF para. 29) and would therefore not 
meet the basic conditions for neighbourhood plans as 
required under the legislation. 
 

None 

The neighbourhood planning advice to the adopted 
Neighbourhood Plan for Edith Weston has failed to give 
satisfactory answers to Edith Weston Parish Council 
regarding how Neighbouring Planning relates to St 
George's Barracks, which has been excluded from the 
Neighbourhood Plan Boundary. This must be remedied 
as part of the SCI process. 

The advice provided to the Edith Weston Neighbourhood 
Plan Group follows national Regulations and guidance. 
The re-designation of a Neighbourhood Plan Boundary 
falls outside the scope and role of the SCI. 

None 
 
 

 
 
 
 

You have not said how you will carry out the 
referendum you are required to conduct.  This might be 
a physical vote in the village hall, on line or via post. 
 

Noted.  A referendum is organised by the Council’s 
Electoral team following the same process as for a 
Parish or general election using the same polling 
stations.  Further information may be found on the 
Councils website. 

Add ‘Referendum’ to the 
glossary. 

Do you agree with the changes which the Council has made to set out how it will consult on planning applications in line with 
legislation and national planning guidance?   

Yes - 32                   No – 78 

Please suggest how the Council should consult on planning applications in lines with legislation and planning guidance 

79



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

6 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

The changes are not very clear. 
 

The SCI makes no significant change to previous 
version, proposed changes were shown as track 
changes in the consultation document All the changes 
are in line with legislation. 

None 

Be transparent and listen to local people and consult 
with as wide range of stakeholders as possible. There 
are groups out there with experience and knowledge 
who would contribute positively to planning applications 
- University of the 3rd Age for example. 

Noted no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation. 
 

None 
 

Any changes in the way information is divulged should 
make information more accessible to as wide as 
possible an audience in as many formats as practicable, 
including libraries as well as easily accessible 
computer-based forums and notices in the press. 

Noted, there are no significant changes to previous 
version and the consultation formats set out are in 
accordance with legislation. 

None 
 

Planning applications should be put into a questionnaire 
format for responses to those who will be affected. This 
should be in a postal manner with self-paid return 
envelopes, this way you will get a true representation of 
the community’s opinion and it will be accessible to all 
groups. 
 

Noted but not practicable to use a questionnaire as   this 
could miss the points people want to include and could 
be accused of using leading questions. 
 

None 

More hard copy notification processes should be used 
especially for major developments and mineral 
excavation. Such matters should be fully notified to local 
Parish Councils for their input and consultation 
feedback. 
 

Noted no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation.  Copies for major EIA 
applications would be made available to parishes in hard 
copy format, if requested, due to the complexity of the 
applications.  However, the Council is being encouraged 
to reduce use and production of paper copies and does 
not have resource to send out plans to everyone.  
Copies are available to view online and via computers 
available in offices (when these are reopened) 

None 

80



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

7 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

 

Next nearest neighbours and those likely to be affected 
by the planning application should be notified by hard 
copy as well as online. 
 

Noted.  This is in accordance with legislation.  
Neighbours will have already been notified about the 
development if they have not responded, the Council 
doesn’t propose to write to them. However dates of 
meetings are advertised on the website. 

None 
 

Only notifying members of the public who have 
commented on applications about the date and time of 
the relevant planning committee applications will be 
debated, restricts the number of opinions being raised 
with the council. Every potential change should be very 
widely publicised. 
 

The SCI makes clear how the Council will seek to 
engage the public and seek to notify all those directly 
affected by proposals. 
 

None 
 

I read the planning notices and any changes are totally 
unclear - just stating 'amendment to plan' without giving 
clear details 

Noted - no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation – seeking to amend letter 
templates to make this clearer. Appendix 5 point 9 
makes clear that notifications on amended plans is at 
the officer’s discretion but if the changes are significant 
that we would then re-consult. 

No change to the SCI 
however will review letter 
templates to make this 
clearer 
 

Face to face consultation  Noted but all consultation needs to be in writing so that 
there is a record of the discussion although officers are 
available to discuss applications with interested parties. 

None 

The local community does not have enough say in the 
outcome and should have the right to stop any 
development proposal if a large enough percentage of 
the local population disagree. A 50% majority of people 
voting should be required either way. 

Noted.  However, applications have to be determined in 
accordance with the legislative provisions which does 
not allow a veto by a majority of local residents. The 
Council seeks to include as many people and groups as 
is practicable and has in the past gone far beyond what 
is required in order to involve interested groups and the 
consultation on the McDonalds application is one 
example where we sought the support of colleagues 

None 

81



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

8 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

from other parts of the council to involve vulnerable 
groups that may otherwise have not have been able to 
get involved in the planning process. 

We are a small county, keep existing processes in 
place. 

Noted no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation. 

None 

Not enough thought has gone into who should be 
considered Stakeholders in this process. No mention of 
Heritage involvement in any of this 

Noted no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation – heritage groups are 
consulted as required by legislation.  The Council does 
employ its own conservation officer and they are 
consulted along with Historic England and other 
conservation groups as required by legislation. 
 

None 
 

The Council doesn't even employ its own Conservation 
Officer, yet we have one of the highest number of Listed 
Buildings per square mile in the country! 
 

The Council does employ its own conservation officer 
and they are consulted along with Historic England and 
other conservation groups as required by legislation. 
 

None 

At the consultations held with the residents from Edith 
Weston, the papers subsequently produced were not an 
accurate reflection of the feedback from Edith Weston.  

Noted no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation – heritage groups are 
consulted as required by legislation.  
 

None 

As The St Georges Development affects everyone in 
Rutland - everyone in Rutland must be fully advised and 
consulted about it. Identify how you will notify people in 
the area of the planning application where those 
residents are shielding.   
 

Comment appears to relate to a specific proposal and is 
not therefore within the scope of the SCI. 

None 

The letters to neighbours are often limited and residents 
not notified are often affected and would wish to 
comment on an application.   
 

Noted no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation.  Parish Councils and 
neighbours are notified. 
 

 

82



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

9 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

If they are shielding they won’t necessarily be leaving 
their homes and wont therefore see the notices put out 
near an application site. 
 

Noted. Appendix 5 relates to process for consulting on 
all planning applications. Specific measures are 
included in the SCI to address the issue of those who 
have been advised to shield, although it should be noted 
that shielding is no longer in effect.  

None 
 
 
 

RCC should fully embrace the recommended 
Government advice on consultations - Appropriate 
methods include virtual exhibitions, digital consultations, 
video conferencing, social media and providing 
documents for inspection on a public website. 

Noted no significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation. The Council seek to notify 
as widely as possible including letters to those directly 
affected as well as press adverts and site notices and 
notification to Parishes.   

None 

In Rutland those over 65 years of age will be 
proportionally more disadvantaged by a push to digital 
first. Out of a Rutland population of approximately 
38,000 some 7,000 plus could be digitally excluded if 
we mirror the national picture and it may be increased 
because of Rutland’s larger than average older 
population. 

Noted and raised with Parish Councils to make sure 
local communities are notified where isolating - . Whilst 
ONS data sets do indicate that internet usage amongst 
the over 65s’ is proportionately lower that it is across the 
whole population (which is about 90% regular usage for 
the East Midlands population), not all those aged 65 or 
over do not have access to the internet. Information 
sourced through the Shielding process indicated that 
less than 10% of those in this age group who were 
shielding did not have access to the internet. This 
reflects national data which indicates that 12% of the 
Leicestershire and Rutland population never use the 
internet. .  Measure are in place to support those who 
wish to comment on a planning application but are 
unable to access the details on the internet. Including 
using Parish Councils to make sure local communities 
are notified where isolating. 

None 

Currently, local planning is out of public control and at 
the whim of civil servants. This has to stop. The RCC 

Applications are determined in accordance with the 
legislative requirements and consultation is carried out 
in accordance with those requirements taking into 

None 

83



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

10 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

must accept local peoples' wishes and become far more 
exact and open in its planning process and proposals. 

account local views. However, local objections have to 
be considered within the correct legal and policy 
framework 

The consultation process is flawed and does not 
provide access to all residents on major planning 
issues. 

Noted – The Planning Team seek to include as many 
people in the planning process as possible and as 
detailed above seek to ensure wide consultation through 
the use of the website, press notices, site notices and 
letters. 

None 

Page 20 Item 5.5 GPC have experience occasions 
where the developer has presented highly biased 
records of such consultations. How does RCC propose 
to ensure that undue weight is not placed on such 
documents produced in support of a planning 
application? 
 

Noted – Documents are independently assessed by 
consultees / officers 
 

None 

Appendix 5 does not define who is to be consulted 
whereas the other Appendices do this.  
 

Noted - No significant change to previous version and in 
accordance with legislation  The relevant legislation 
which is referred to sets out which consultation bodies 
must be notified and as this varies depending on the 
type of application / constraints it is not feasible to list all 
potential variations that is why reference has been made 
to the legislation. 
 

None 

Section 5 of the SCI covers Community Involvement in 
Planning Applications. It was clear, even before Covid-
19 made things mandatory for the foreseeable future, 
that RCC has wished to remove the paper copies of its 
consultation with Town Councils, Parishes and Parish 
Meetings and that the sole consultation would then be 
an electronic link through to the planning web-site to 

Major applications are reported in the press, letters in 
post, Parish Councils, and the statutory and non-
statutory consultees are notified.  Most major 
applications are then reported to the Development 
Control Committee for determination. Where we are 
aware of other venerable groups we have also sought to 

None 

84



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

11 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

view the application and its accompanying documents 
on line.  

undertake specialist consultation with them.  In order to 
enable them to take part in the planning process. 

There is no information in Appendix 5 as to the relevant 
section of the National Planning Guidance. It is 
therefore not possible to give an informed response to 
this question.  
 

Appendix 5 sets out how members of the public will be 
notified about applications and in what format. The 
relevant legislation is set out in Schedule 4 of the Town 
& Country Planning Development Management 
Procedure Orders (DMPO) 2015 this to sets out which 
consultation bodies must be notified for different types of 
application which varies depending on the type of 
application / constraints. This legislation is clearly 
referenced in Appendix 5 as it is not feasible to list all 
potential variations that is why reference has been made 
to the legislation. 

None 

The sole consultation would then be an electronic link 
through to the planning web-site to view the application 
and its accompanying documents on line as a computer 
link is still effectively disenfranchising those Parish 
Councillors, and there are quite a few of them, without 
web access.  
 
 

Rutland has many Parish Councils that are using and 
have actively chosen to go to a digital consultation 
process.  However for those that prefer a paper copy the 
Council will provide this on major complex EIA 
applications.  The Parish Councils can always print 
copies off themselves if they wish too. 
 

None 

Parishes are in general not in a position to finance the 
cost of ensuring all councillors are linked up 
electronically (and it is not a mandatory requirement of 
being a Parish Councillor anyway.)  
 

Noted but the Council is being encourage to reduce use 
and production of paper copies and does not have 
resource to send out plans to everyone.  Copies are 
available to view online and via computers available in 
offices (when these are reopened) – on Major complex 
EIA applications paper copies will be made available on 
request. 

None 

85



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

12 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

Large applications and /or those with complex plans 
and supporting material can be difficult to look at on 
standard sized computer equipment.  
 

Noted but the Council is being encourage to reduce use 
and production of paper copies and does not have 
resource to send out plans to everyone.  Copies are 
available to view online and via computers available in 
offices (when these are reopened) – on Major complex 
EIA applications paper copies will be made available on 
request. Most plans can now be viewed on a normal 
laptop screen or monitor  
 

None 

Parish Councils do not, in general, have the resources, 
for example, to spend on the kind of equipment that 
makes viewing physically large plans comprehensible.  
 

Noted but the Council is being encourage to reduce use 
and production of paper copies and does not have 
resource to send out plans to everyone Most plans can 
now be viewed on a normal laptop screen or monitor. 

None 

Paras 5.18 to 5.23 – There is no mention of any 
planning decision needing to be referred to Full Council 
for a decision.  Does this need to be included? 
 

Planning applications do not need to be referred to full 
council any more.  This element has been removed from 
the constitution. 
 

None 

Paper plans and copies of plans should be reinstated 
and continue to be available to view. There appears to 
be little or no regard to past comments made by parish 
councillors to Rutland CC concerning the need for 
ubiquitous access to planning applications and there is 
a complete absence of feedback to the comments 
made. 

Applications are determined in accordance with the 
legislative requirements and consultation is carried out in 
accordance with those requirements taking into account 
local views. However, local objections have to be 
considered within the correct legal and policy framework. 
 

None 

A site notice is inadequate and insulting to those 
residents affected by a proposed housing development. 
You make it as difficult as possible for people to find out 
details and make comments on them. Nor are we 
informed of planning meetings and decisions. We 
should not have to search for information; many of my 

The Planning Team seek to include as many people in 
the planning process as possible and as detailed above 
seek to ensure wide consultation through the use of the 
website, press notices, site notices and letters. 
 

None 

86



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

13 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

neighbours are elderly and not computer confident. I am 
copying info for them to read! 

As an adjoining land owner, who has made comments 
on a large planning application we found out by chance 
after finding a notice tied to a lamp post nearby. At the 
very least, those who are directly affected by a planning 
application should have a letter explaining exactly what 
is planned. No one on either parish or county councils 
have been on a site visit or knocked on our doors.  
 

The Planning Team seek to include as many people in 
the planning process as possible and as detailed above 
seek to ensure wide consultation through the use of the 
website, press notices, site notices and letters. 
All meetings are published on the website and 
neighbours that have commented are notified when the 
committee meeting will be if there is one.  Not sure of 
the specifics of this case as adjacent landowners are 
notified if there is a property on them.  This can be a 
problem if it is just vacant land or a field. 

None 

Other Comments 

The online form must include the RCC logo and 'house 
style' in order to reassure those who may be cautious 
about online fraud that it is genuine. 
 

Noted.  Good point. Ensure online form 
includes the RCC logo and 
corporate layout. 
 

This consultation is not in-line with the HM Government 
Code of Practice on consultations, (LPA are sign posted 
to by the LGA) nor does it follow the Gunning principles, 
which need to be met for the consultation to be 
legitimate. 
 

Although there is no statutory requirement to undertake 
consultation on the SCI, the consultation was 
undertaken following the 2012 Planning Regulations. 
The SCI consultation document clearly sets out the 
changes and why they’re being made.  Furthermore, the 
changes proposed are necessary to reflect legislative 
changes and the restrictions during the current 
pandemic. The consultation on the SCI is considered 
appropriate and proportionate, particularly given that it 
relates to the minimum methods of consultation with the 
community and as such undertaken in accordance with 
the Government’s code of recommended practice on 

None 

87



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

14 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

Local Authority publicity and aligned with the Gunning 
principles.  

 

The RCC Peer Review carried out by LGA also makes 
clear recommendations that RCC need to develop 
robust methods for community consultation, 
engagement and communication, which have not been 
adequately implemented for this consultation. 

Noted.  This falls outside of the scope of this document.  
The SCI relates only to planning consultation and the 
review of the SCI is one part of addressing the 
recommendations of the peer review. The consultation 
on the SCI is considered appropriate and 
proportionate.  
 

None 
 

To pursue a digital first strategy RCC need to increase 
digital inclusion.  
 

Noted The Council is following government guidance 
for greater web and digital format in the light of covid 
restrictions. The Council has a Digital Rutland Strategy 
2019-2022. This includes as the 6th Aim Digital 
Inclusion and sets out measure which will be used to 
address digital exclusion. Changes should be made to 
the SCI to set out how those without digital access or 
skills can be included within consultation processes. 
 

Set out how those without 
internet access will be 
encouraged to participate 
in consultation 
 

RCC are not asking in this consultation if the revisions 
meet the requirements to allow for continued community 
engagement, RCC are simply stating that the revisions 
they are suggesting are the governments advice and by 
doing so we believe are in breach of the Code of 
Conduct for local authorities. 

Whilst there is no statutory requirement to undertake 
consultation on the SCI, the consultation was 
undertaken following the 2012 Planning Regulations. 
The SCI consultation document clearly sets out the 
changes and why they’re being made.  Furthermore, the 
changes proposed are necessary to reflect legislative 
changes and the restrictions during the current 
pandemic. The consultation on the SCI is considered 
appropriate and proportionate, particularly given that it 
relates to the minimum methods of consultation with the 

 

88



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

15 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

community and as such meets the Government’s code 
of recommended practice on Local Authority publicity.  

For legitimate consultation Gunning Principles state that 
there should be sufficient information to give intelligent 
consideration. Information provided must relate to the 
consultation, and must be available, accessible, and 
easily interpretable for consultees to provide an 
informed response. 
 

There is no significant change to the previous version 
of the SCI.  The SCI Review document was published 
alongside the online response form and clearly sets out 
all of the information necessary for consideration, this 
includes the consultation methods in the Appendices 1- 
4 which are the minimum requirements for 
consultation to take place on planning policy 
documents whilst allowing flexibility for the use of 
additional forms of consultation and engagement 
depending on the issue and stage of the consultation 
document. Some areas are identified through the 
consultation as needing clarity or expansion. 
The changes proposed to the SCI are necessary to 
reflect legislative changes and the restrictions during 
the current pandemic.  Whilst there is no statutory 
requirement to undertake consultation on the SCI the 
consultation followed the 2012 Planning Regulations.  
The consultation on the SCI is considered appropriate 
and proportionate. As such, the Council considers 
given the level of responses received, this indicates the 
SCI was available, accessible and easily interpretable 
for consultees to have provided an informed response 
and as such the SCI consultation aligns with the 
Gunning Principles. 

 

Changes to text of 
documents to clarify and 
expand details of 
consultation techniques 
available. 

Paragraph 4.4 makes it clear that some consultation 
techniques may not be possible during Covid-19 

Agree Clarify the consultation 
techniques which may not 

89



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

16 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

restrictions. It would aid clarity if techniques that may be 
dropped were clearly identified 
 

be available due to covid-
19 restrictions. 

 

Space constraints in many of the answer boxes have 
caused me to edit down my comments.  This is 
unacceptable, as it risks a significant loss of meaning.  I 
have also had to use this box for a number of 
comments as there is no other space for them.  This 
restrictive approach does not make for effective 
community engagement. 
 

Noted this will be addressed in the online consultation 
form for subsequent consultation documents. 

 

Ensure online response 
forms for future 
consultations do not have 
restricted word count. 
 

There is general concern that Rutland Council has not 
properly analysed the many (over 1500) responses 
received after the consultation in July 2018. 
 
 

Noted.  A Summary of the consultation and officer 
responses was reported in an appendix to Council on 
27th January 2020 and helped inform the pre-
submission version of the Local Plan. 
 

https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=11852#mgDocuments 
 

A Statement of Community Consultation will be 
published alongside the pre-submission Local Plan for 
Reg 19 consultation.  This includes a summary of 
responses to and action taken arising from all the 
consultation on the Local Plan undertaken to date. 

 

None 
 

The Council is not following government guidance in 
this questionnaire or in fact the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights Article 19 which allows for free 
expression of opinions by various methods of 
communications. 
 

The consultation was been undertaken fairly and 
appropriately.   The Council does not believe that there 
has been a breach of the Universal Declaration of 
Human Rights Article 19. The Council has undertaken 
a consultation and it is our view that this consultation is 
lawful. 

 
None 
 
 
 
 
 

90

https://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/mgAi.aspx?ID=11852#mgDocuments


Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

17 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

 
 

Corrections 

There is an error on Appendix 1 - The minimum 
requirements are inconsistent – irrespective of the 
Covid caveat.  
 

Accepted. Appendix 1 should be amended to ensure 
consistent approach at each stage 
 

Change Appendix 1 
accordingly. 

Page 2 Item 1.9. GPC believe that the same Statement 
of Consultation should be prepared for SPD’s as well as 
DPD’s 

A Statement of Consultation is prepared for a SPD– as 
required by Regulation 12(a) of the Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 
 

Add reference to SPD in 
the paragraph about 
Consultation statement 
 

At Reg 18 the libraries are used as a method to engage 
as a minimum standard – but this is missing as a 
minimum requirement at Reg 19. 

Noted – this should be changed for consistency. Make changes as 
appropriate. 
 

Page 23. Item 5,25. The term “Householder Appeals” is 
used. This should be defined in the Glossary. 

Agree – add to Glossary. Update Glossary 

Page 27 The term “outstanding representation” is used. 
This should be defined in the Glossary. 
 

“Representation” added to Glossary and defined for 
clarity wording amended to remove “outstanding” 

 

Update Glossary 
 

Appendix 5 The abbreviation DMPO should be in the 
Glossary. 

Agree - add to Glossary 
 

Update Glossary 
 

Appendix 5 does not define who is to be consulted 
whereas the other Appendices do this to the relevant 
section of the National Planning Guidance. Why is this? 

 
 

This section sets out how members of the public will be 
notified about different types of applications. This is 
different for each type of applications and is set out in 
the DMPO. It is not practical to repeat this legislation in 
the SCI but the relevant section of the DMPO is clearly 
signposted within the Appenidx.  
 

None 
 

The pages after page 24 are not numbered Agree- make changes Add page numbering  

91



Appendix 2 
Rutland Local Plan Review 

Statement of Community Involvement 
Schedule of Main Issues Raised, Officer Responses and Proposed Changes 

 
 

18 
 

Main issues raised Officer Response Proposed Change 

   

Local Plan Newsletter has been deleted (para 1.15), but 
is still in Table 1, Sect 4.  The newsletter should be 
retained as an important means of keeping 
stakeholders informed. 

Agree should be updated for consistency Make changes as 
appropriate 
 

Clause 1.9 requires definition of the word "main" 
otherwise open to abuse. 

Agree – delete word “main” 
 

Delete “main” 
 

 
The document uses the terms Local Plan, Development 
Plan, DPD in many places but it is not clear, even from 
the definitions in the Glossary (Appendix 6) that these 
terms are used consistently or exactly what they 
mean.  This must be clarified; a diagram to illustrate the 
relationships might help. 

 
Noted – changes made to ensure consistency and 
clarified. 
 
 
 
 

 
Update and clarify different 
terms - Make changes as 
appropriate. 

Appendix 7 – This list needs to be updated.  It still 
includes DCLG, for instance. 

Agreed - details updated  
Update details for MHCLG 

 

 

92



 

Equality Impact Assessment First Stage Screening Template 
 
Once completed please submitted with your report and save a copy in: 
 
S:\Equality & Diversity\Equality Impact Assessments\EIAs Pending Review by E & D Group 
 

Report Title & Ref: Local Plan – Update on timetable and consultation 85/2020 

Officer completing: James Faircliffe 

Purpose of Report (please 
provide a summary) 

The report proposes a new Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI). 

Meeting and Date to be 
approved 

18th March 2020 

3rd June 2020 

23rd September 2020 

2nd December 2020 

   Comments 

1. Is there any differential impact on the 
public based on the following 
characteristics: N

o
n

e
 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 

N
e
g

a
ti
v
e
 

V
a

ri
e

d
 Where there is evidence that some 

groups are affected differently 
(positive or negative) provide details 

  Age ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ The SCI acknowledges the need to 
consult hard to reach groups, 
including through representative 
groups.  Access to the Internet will 
vary.  The SCI needs to reflect that 
limited telephone information in 
relation to queries is still available as 
an alternative to email or face-to-
face contact (the latter probably 
being impracticable due to Covid-
19).  SCI needs to make clear that 
non-electronic reps. can still be 
viewed or made, with or without the 
standard form. 

  Disability ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ 

  Gender reassignment ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ No differential impact has been 
identified for this equality group. 

  Marriage and civil partnership ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ No differential impact has been 
identified for this equality group. 

  Pregnancy and maternity ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ No differential impact has been 
identified for this equality group. 

  Race ☐ ☐ ☐ ☒ The SCI acknowledges the need to 
consult hard to reach groups such 
as Gypsies and Travellers and other 
minority ethnic groups, including 
through representative groups.  
Access to the Internet will vary.  The 
SCI needs to reflect that limited 
telephone information in relation to 
queries is still available as an 
alternative to email or face-to-face 

93

file:///S:/Equality%20&%20Diversity/Equality%20Impact%20Assessments/EIAs%20Pending%20Review%20by%20E%20&%20D%20Group


 

Report Title & Ref: Local Plan – Update on timetable and consultation 85/2020 

Officer completing: James Faircliffe 

Purpose of Report (please 
provide a summary) 

The report proposes a new Statement of Community Involvement 
(SCI). 

Meeting and Date to be 
approved 

18th March 2020 

3rd June 2020 

23rd September 2020 

2nd December 2020 

   Comments 

contact.  In the context of para. 3.29, 
the SCI should refer to “Gypsies” 
instead of “Gypsy” or “Gypsies”.  SCI 
needs to make clear that non-
electronic reps. can still be viewed or 
made, with or without the standard 
form. 

  Religion or belief ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ No differential impact has been 
identified for this equality group 

  Sex ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ No differential impact has been 
identified for this equality group. 

  Sexual orientation ☒ ☐ ☐ ☐ No differential impact has been 
identified for this equality group. 

2. If you have identified potential 
discrimination, are any exceptions 
valid, legal and/or justifiable? 

Select As a general point, the SCI should 
state that the equalities monitoring 
part of the return should remain 
confidential.  The other aspects 
raised in this screening report are 
also easily addressed. 

3. Is the overall impact of the 
policy/guidance likely to be negative? 

N Provided the points in this screening 
report are addressed. 

4. Are there alternatives that achieve the 
policy/guidance objectives which 
would reduce/eliminate the impact? 

Y These are included in this screening 
report. 

5. Have you identified a potential 
discriminatory impact that cannot be 
avoided? 

N (If Yes complete Full EIA) 

 
 
 

94

file:///C:/Users/RRanson/AppData/Local/Microsoft/Windows/INetCache/Content.Outlook/CKTGTWUY/Equality%20Impact%20Assessment%20Report.docx


Report No: 92/2020 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

18 August 2020 

ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2019/20 

Report of the Strategic Director for Resources 

Strategic 
Aim: 

Customer-focussed services 

Key Decision: No Forward Plan Reference: FP/170720 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Mr G Brown, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder 
for Planning, Environment, Property and Finance. 

 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Saverio Della Rocca, Strategic 
Director for Resources (s.151 
Officer) 

01572 758159 
sdrocca@rutland.gov.uk 

 Andrew Merry, Finance Manager 01572 758152 
amerry@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors None 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Notes the actual 2019/20 prudential indicators within the report. 

2. Notes that the treasury management stewardship for 2019/20 was in compliance with 
the treasury management strategy. 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1.1 Report 05/2019 set the Treasury Management Strategy for 2019/20 linked to 
the Council’s Budget, Medium Term Financial Plan and Capital Plans. It is 
inextricably linked to delivering the Council’s aims and objectives.  

1.2 This report sets out how the Council has performed against the Strategy. 

 

95

Agenda Item 8

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0


 

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS 

2.1 The Council’s annual treasury report in Appendix A includes information on 
the performance of the treasury management service. The key points to note 
in year are:   

 The Council has invested with institutions as determined by the revised 
creditworthiness criteria approved by the Section 151 Officer; with the 
exception of Skipton Building Society (SBS) due to an error on the 
Council’s credit counterparty list provided by Link Asset Services. This 
was previously reported in the mid-year Treasury report- 168/2019 
(Appendix A, paragraph 2.2.4 refers).  At that time the assessed risk 
was low.  The funds are due for return in August and September and 
we will able to confirm the first repayment at the Cabinet meeting itself; 

 The Councils made a return on investment of 0.95% compared to the 
LIBOR rate of 0.73% (Appendix A, paragraph 2.3.1 refers) ; 

 The Council did not undertake any external borrowing in year and 
therefore did not breach the operational boundary for borrowing 
(£28m) (Appendix A, paragraph 3.4.3 refers); and 

 No external debt was repaid early as there was not a financial 
business case to do so (Appendix A, paragraph 3.4.3 refers). 

3 CONSULTATION 

3.1 No formal consultation is required. 

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

4.1 This report is for noting there are no alternative options. 

5 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. 

6 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 

6.1 The report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in 
Local Authorities and the Council’s Financial Procedure Rules.  The Council 
is required to comply with both Codes through Regulations issued under the 
Local Government Act 2003. 

6.2 The Council’s treasury management activities for 2019/20 were regulated by 
a variety of professional codes, statutes and guidance (which have been 
updated for 2019/20):  

96



 The Local Government Act 2003 (the Act), which provides the powers 
to borrow and invest as well as providing controls and limits on this 
activity;  

 The Act permits the Secretary of State to set limits either on the 
Council or nationally on all local authorities restricting the amount of 
borrowing which may be undertaken; 

 Statutory Instrument (SI) 3146 2003, as amended, develops the 
controls and powers within the Act;  

 The SI requires the Council to undertake any borrowing activity with 
regard to the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local 
Authorities;  

 The SI also requires the Council to operate the overall treasury 
function with regard to the CIPFA Code of Practice for Treasury 
Management in the Public Services;  

 Under the Act MHCLG has issued Investment Guidance to structure 
and regulate the Council’s investment activities; and 

 Under Section 238(2) of the Local Government and Public Involvement 
in Health Act 2007 the Secretary of State has taken powers to issue 
guidance on accounting practices.  Guidance on Minimum Revenue 
Provision was issued under this section on 8 November 2007. 

6.3 The Council’s Treasury Management Strategy explains how it will comply 
with the legal framework and this annual report confirms compliance. 

7 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 

7.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has not been completed 
because there are no risks/issues to the rights and freedoms of natural 
persons. 

8 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

8.1 An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been completed because 
there are no service, policy or organisational changes being proposed. 

9 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

9.1 There are no community safety implications. 

10 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 There are no health and wellbeing implications. 

11 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS  

97



11.1 The report summarises treasury management performance in the year and 
meets the requirements set out in section 6. 

12 BACKGROUND PAPERS 

12.1 Statement of Accounts 2019/20 

13 APPENDICES  

13.1 Appendix A - Treasury Management Annual Report 

13.2 Appendix B - Link Commentary on 2019/20 

13.3 Appendix C - Glossary 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is 
available upon request – Contact 01572 722577.  

 

98



Appendix A.   

TREASURY MANAGEMENT ANNUAL REPORT 2019/20 

1 OVERVIEW OF STRATEGY 

1.1 What is Treasury Management? 

1.1.1 Treasury management is the term used to describe the way a Council 
manages the cash it needs to meet both its day-to-day running costs and 
borrowing for capital expenditure.  The treasury management function for a 
Council will make the arrangements to borrow and invest money either over 
the short or the longer term in order to ensure that it has money available 
when it needs it.  

1.1.2 CIPFA defines treasury management as“…the management of the 
organisation’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money market and 
capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with 
those risks”. 

1.2 What framework or rules do we need to follow?  

1.2.1 In making arrangements for treasury management, a Council is required to 
follow CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code. The Code aims to help ensure 
that Councils manage the significant risks associated with the function while 
also ensuring the Council receives value for money.  

1.2.2 The Council approved a Strategy in February 2019 (report 05/2019) which 
covered; 

 borrowing strategy, including capital plans (including prudential 
indicators); 

 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 
expenditure is charged to revenue over time); and 

 the treasury management strategy (strategy guidelines for choosing 
and placing investments, the principles to be used to determine the 
maximum periods for which funds can be committed, what specified 
and non specified investments will be considered how the investments 
and borrowings are to be organised) including treasury indicators. 

1.2.3 Councils need to prove that they are complying with the Prudential Code and 
this is done through a series of prudential indicators that are set locally and 
approved at the same time as the Council sets its budget for the following 
year. 

99



2 TREASURY PERFORMANCE 

2.1 How much did we have to invest during 2019/20? 

2.1.1 The Council receives lots of income from council tax, business rates and 
central government. The majority of council tax and business rates payments 
are received between April and January, with expenditure being fairly static 
throughout the year.  

2.1.2 At any point of time in the year, the Council had between £34m - £47m 
available to invest.  The table below shows the level of investments held 
during the year, the average level of investments during the year was 
£40.310m. 

 

2.2 Did we achieve our investment objectives? Did we invest in line within 
approved rules? 

2.2.1 Like us as individuals, the Council will invest surplus money in various ways 
to get a return on balances thus generating extra income.  As per our overall 
objectives, we ensure that these surplus balances are managed in a way to 
maximise the income potential whilst having regard to security risk.   

2.2.2 The Council’s investment strategy primary objectives, in order of importance 
are: 

 safeguarding the re-payment of the principal and interest of its 
investments on time – losing any funds like in the case of Icelandic 
banks would be very significant in this financial climate; 

 adequate liquidity – the Council does not want to run short of money so 
it cannot pay its bills or does not have money available to make 
investments in capital expenditure; 

 Maximising the investment return – this is clearly important but the 
Council does not want to maximise returns at the expense of the first 
two objectives. 

2018/19 
Actual 

 
 

£000 

2019/20  
Quarter 1  

as at  
30-Jun-19 

£000 

2019/20  
Quarter 2 

  as at 
 30-Sep-19 

£000 

2019/20  
Quarter 3 

as at 
 31-Dec-19  

£000 

2019/20  
Quarter 4 

as at  
31-Mar-20  

£000 

34,505 37,467 40,041 42,370 41,281 

100



2.2.3 The majority of Council’s investments during the financial year were made 
with approved institutions within the agreed limits contained within the 
Treasury Management Strategy 2019/20 (05/2019), with the exception of 
£3m invested with Skipton Building Society, paragraph 2.2.4 refers. These 
limits are: 

 £5m for a maximum of 3 years for institutions within the upper limit of 
the credit ratings; 

 £5m for a maximum of 364 days for institutions within the middle limit 
of credit ratings; other local authorities and Money Market Funds; 

 £1m for a maximum of 6 months those institutions without a credit 
rating, normally certain Building Societies whose operation does not 
require a credit rating. 

2.2.4 During the first six months of 2019/20 £3m was invested with Skipton 
Building Society (SBS) due to an error on the Council’s credit counterparty 
list provided by Link Asset Services. The counterparty credit list provided by 
our treasury advisors showed SBS to be meeting the minimum credit criteria 
for investments up to £5million and 364 days when it should have showed 
£1million and 6 months. As reported in the mid-year report there is deemed 
to be a low risk of default; SBS are still trading and in the markets for new 
funds. There are no concerns regarding SBS in the media. The investments 
are due for repayment on 6th August 2020 (£1m) and 4th September 2020 
(£2m).  

2.2.5 Following the principles set out in paragraph 2.2.2, the Council made 
investment returns as shown below. 

 Original    
Estimate   
2019/20 

Revised   
Estimate   

2019/20 Q2 

Actuals 
2019/20 

 

 £000 £000 £000 

Investment Income 188 348 383 

Other Interest Received * 12 12 14 

Total 200 360 397 
* The Council also receives interest from sources other than investments. A Housing Association has been recharged £12k for the 

principal and interest of loans that the Council has made to it, the final payment will be in 2051/52.  

2.3 How did the Council investments perform? 

2.3.1 The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Council to set 
performance indicators to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over 
the year.  An example of a performance indicator often used for the 
investment treasury function is internal returns above the 6 month LIBOR 
rate (the average interbank interest rate at which a selection of banks on the 
London money market are prepared to lend to one another).   

101



The Council monitored performance against the LIBOR rate during 2019/20 
and the results are shown below. 

 2018/19  2019/20 (Q2)  2019/20 (Q4) 

RCC Returns (%) 0.83 0.97 0.95 

LIBOR (%) 0.91 0.83 0.73 

 

2.3.2 The average rate achieved is an improvement on the performance from 
2018/19; as the full year impact of the increase in the base rate in August 
2018 from 0.5% to 0.75% materialised and the Council was able to take 
advantage of holding longer dated investments (up to 364 days) to achieve 
higher returns.  The base rate was reduced during March 2020 from 0.75% 
to 0.10%, the impact of this on interest received will be seen during 2020-21. 
In terms of the budgetary performance for 2019/20 the Council outperformed 
the budget by £197k.  

3 PRUDENTIAL (BORROWING AND DEBT) INDICATORS 

3.1 Why do we borrow? 

3.1.1 Council’s borrow to fund capital expenditure or refinance/reschedule existing 
borrowings e.g. replace one loan with one at a lower rate.  

3.1.2 Effectively, the Council works out its capital expenditure plans and then 
calculates how much it needs to borrow having considered whether it should 
fund capital expenditure using other options.   

3.2 What was our Capital Expenditure and how did we fund it? 

3.2.1 The Council’s capital expenditure during 2019/20 was £4.076m. The outturn 
report (84/2020) contains detailed analysis of the capital programme and 
financing.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

102



3.2.2 The £4.076m was financed as per the table below. The financing need 
represents an increase in borrowing requirements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    

*Audited Statement of Accounts 2018/19 
** Revised Estimate per Mid-Year Treasury Report (168/2019) 
*** Note 20 - Statement of Accounts 2019/20 (unaudited) and outturn report (84/2020).  

3.3 What was the Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing 
Requirement)? 

3.3.1 Any unsupported borrowing in a given year is added to the Council’s Capital 
Financing Requirement.  There is no unsupported borrowing for 2019/20. 

3.3.2 The Council’s Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is simply the total 
capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or 
capital resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying 
borrowing need. The CFR is reduced every year as the Council incurs a 
‘borrowing charge’ in the Revenue Account which reduces it (this is called 
Minimum Revenue Provision).  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 2018/19 

Actual* 

2019/20  

Revised 

Estimate** 

2019/20 

Actual*** 

£000 £000 £000 

Capital Expenditure 4,480 6,715 4,076 

Financed by:    

Capital Receipts/Developers 

Contributions 

158 283 140 

Capital Grants & Contributions 4,167 5,467 3,521 

Revenue Contributions 155 278 415 

Net financing need for the year 0 687 0 

103



3.3.3 The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key 
prudential indicator. 

 

 

 2018/19  

Actual* 

 

 

 £000 

2019/20 

Revised 

Estimate** 

 

£000 

2019/20 

Actual*** 

 

 

£000 

CFR – 1 April  21,859 21,245 21,245 

Movement in Year  - CFR (613) 23 (614)  

CFR – 31 March 21,246 21,268 20,631 

Movement in CFR Represented by 

Net financing need for the 

year (from table at para 

3.2.2) 

 

0 

 

687 

 

0 

MRP  (613) (664) (614) 

Voluntary Revenue 

Provision (VRP) 

- - - 

Movement in CFR (613) 23 (614) 

*   Audited Statement of Accounts 2018/19 
** Revised Estimate per Mid-Year Treasury Report (168/2019) 
*** Note 20 - Statement of Accounts 2019/20 (unaudited) and outturn report (84/2020).  

3.4 What is the current level of debt and how might it change? 

3.4.1 The Council currently has loans outstanding of £22.436m of which £21.386m 
are long term loans with the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). The 
remainder comprises a Salix Loan of £420k repayable in 2020 and a Local 
Enterprise Partnership loan (LEP) of £630k, which matures in 2023.  The 
Salix and LEP loans are shown in the accounts at concessionary rates which 
increases year on year until the final year where the full value is recognised.  
Details of the outstanding loans can be found in the table in paragraph 3.4.3.  

3.4.2 All PWLB loans have been borrowed on a maturity basis. Interest payments 
will be made every six months on equal instalments throughout the term of 
the loan, with the principal being repaid on the maturity date.  

3.4.3 The overall debt position is monitored continuously and advice provided by 
Link Asset Services to identify opportunities for the repayment or 
restructuring of debt.  No such opportunities were identified as cost effective 
in the year.  Repayment of debt is subject to either a premium or dividend 
equating to the difference in interest payable for the remainder of the term of 
the loan and that which could be earned by the lender on a new loan for the 
same period.  The debt position at the 31 March 2020 compared to the 
previous year is shown in the following table:  

104



3.5 What borrowing limits did we set and how did we comply?  

3.5.1 The Council cannot simply borrow indefinitely. There are a number of 
prudential indicators to ensure the Council operates its activities within well-
defined limits.  The indicators focus on two key aspects: 

 Setting limits to control borrowing; and 

 Assessing the affordability of the capital investment plans. 

3.5.2 In addition, we also set limits on interest rate exposure. 

3.5.3 Controlling borrowing prudential indicators 

3.5.4 The Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short 
term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of 
any additional CFR for 2019/20 and the following two financial years.  This 
indicator is important as it effectively measures whether your actual external 
debt exceeds your need to borrow.  If it does, then it could suggest that 
Councils have been borrowing when they do not need to do so or for 
inappropriate purposes.  It could also mean that the Council has made a 
reduction to its CFR by undertaking VRP. This is the case for the Council, 

 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 

 Principal Average 
rate 

Principal Average 
rate 

Long Term Debt 
Public Works Loan 
Board (all fixed rate 
debt) 

 
£21.386m 

 
4.83% 

 
£21.386m 

 
4.83% 

Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) 

£0.583m* 0.00% £0.595m* 0.00% 

Salix Loan £0.281m* 0.00% £0.201m* 0.00% 

Total long term debt 
(all fixed rate debt) 

£22.250m £22.182m 

Operational 
Boundary 

£28.000m £28.000m 

Capital Financing 
Requirement 

£21.246m £20.631m 

Over/(under) 
borrowing 

(£1.004m) (£1.551m) 

Total investments  (£34.505m) 0.83% (£41.281m) 0.95% 

Net borrowing 
position  

(£12.255m) (£19.099m) 

* The Council has not increased its LEP loan but the actual loan (£630k over 
10 years) is shown in the accounts at a concessionary rate which increases 
year on year until the final year where the full value is recognised. The Salix 
(£420k over 5 Years) is also shown in the accounts at a concessionary rate 
until the final year where the full value is recognised, this loan is repaid in 
instalments and not on maturity.   

105



with additional VRP’s being made in 2013/14 for £1.414m and 2015/16 
£0.597m. 

3.5.5 The table below shows that the Council has complied with this indicator for 
2019/20. 

     2019/20  

Actual 

 £000 

2020/21 

Estimate 

£000 

2021/22 

Estimate 

£000 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£000 

Gross Debt 22,436 27,436 27,436 27,436 

Capital Financing 

Requirement (CFR) 

20,631 32,503 31,583 30,664 

Under / (Over) 

borrowing 

(1,805) 5,067 4,147 3,228 

3.5.6 In 2019/20, the Council was in an “overborrowed” position, which can be 
explained as follows:  

 The position did not materialise from borrowing for revenue purposes, 
which this indicator is a key test of.  Since 2008 when the Council 
borrowed £4m PWLB for the by-pass, the Council has taken only two 
loans i) an interest free loan from the Local Enterprise Partnership to 
contribute to the purchase and renovation of Oakham Enterprise Park 
(£630k); and ii) a Salix loan at 0% for Street Lighting upgrades 
(£420k).  This borrowing is for capital purposes and not to fund 
revenue. 

 The Council has also made voluntary contributions to reduce its CFR 
as a means of reducing the capital financing charge on the revenue 
account. In 2013/14 the application of unused Capital Receipts was 
used to reduce the CFR by £1.4m and in 2015/16 to repay the 
advance borrowing in relation to Adult Soccer a reduction of £597k.  If 
the Council had not done this, the CFR would be £2m higher and the 
revenue account would receive a higher capital financing charge.  

3.5.7 Ideally, to reduce interest costs, the Council would have preferred to use 
capital receipts etc to repay external debt.  However, there has not been a 
viable business case to do so. The Council would have to pay a premium to 
repay early, which would cost the Council in the long term more than 
repaying in line with the current loan on maturity. 

3.5.8 A further key prudential indicator represents a control on the maximum level 
of borrowing.  The Council approved the Authorised Limit of £33m. This 
represents a limit beyond which external borrowing is prohibited, and this 
limit needs to be set or revised by the full Council. It reflects the level of 
external borrowing which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short 
term, but is not sustainable in the longer term 

106



3.5.9 The table in paragraph 3.4.3 shows that Council did not breach this limit for 
2019/20.  

3.5.10 An additional indicator is the Operational Boundary – this is the maximum 
amount of money a Council expects to borrow during the year. This is lower 
than the Authorised Limit and acts as a useful warning sign if it is breached 
during the year, which could mean that underlying spending may be higher 
or income lower than budgeted. The Council approved an Operational 
Boundary of £28m within the 2019/20 Treasury Strategy. The table in 
paragraph 3.4.3 shows that Council did not breach this limit for 2019/20.  

3.5.11 Affordability Prudential Indicators 

3.5.12 The previous section covered the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are 
required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans.  These 
provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the 
Council’s overall finances.   

3.5.13 One of the key affordability indicators is the ratio of financing costs to net 
revenue stream.  This indicator helps a Council identify if borrowing costs 
become too high as a proportion of its budget. This is important as borrowing 
costs always have to be paid and are very hard to cut if resources fall.  

 Budgeted 
£000 

Actual  
£000 

 

Capital Financing Costs 1,697 1,768  

Interest Receivable (0,240) (0,397)  

 1,457 1,371 A 

Revenue Stream    

Government Grants 3,772 5,977  

Retained Business Rates 5,214 5,374  

Council Tax 26,597 26,597  

 35,583 37,948 B 

Ratio (A divided by B as a percentage) 4.09% 3.61%  

3.5.14 The table above shows that the Council complied with this indicator. The net 
financing costs (A) were lower than budgeted, due to the additional interest 
earned on investments and the Revenue Stream (B) being higher due to 
additional income from government grants. 

107



Appendix B.  Link Asset Services Commentary on The Economy and Interest Rates 

1 UK.   

1.1 Brexit. The main issue in 2019 was the repeated battles in the House of 
Commons to agree on one way forward for the UK over the issue of Brexit. This 
resulted in the resignation of Teresa May as the leader of the Conservative 
minority Government and the election of Boris Johnson as the new leader, on a 
platform of taking the UK out of the EU on 31 October 2019. The House of 
Commons duly frustrated that renewed effort and so a general election in 
December settled the matter once and for all by a decisive victory for the 
Conservative Party: that then enabled the UK to leave the EU on 31 January 2020. 
However, this still leaves much uncertainty as to whether there will be a 
reasonable trade deal achieved by the target deadline of the end of 2020. It is also 
unclear as to whether the coronavirus outbreak may yet impact on this deadline; 
however, the second and third rounds of negotiations have already had to be 
cancelled due to the virus. 

1.2 Economic growth in 2019 has been very volatile with quarter 1 unexpectedly 
strong at 0.5%, quarter 2 dire at -0.2%, quarter 3 bouncing back up to +0.5% and 
quarter 4 flat at 0.0%, +1.1% y/y.  2020 started with optimistic business surveys 
pointing to an upswing in growth after the ending of political uncertainty as a result 
of the decisive result of the general election in December settled the Brexit issue.  
However, the three monthly GDP statistics in January were disappointing, being 
stuck at 0.0% growth. Since then, the whole world has changed as a result of the 
coronavirus outbreak.  It now looks likely that the closedown of whole sections of 
the economy will result in a fall in GDP of at least 15% in quarter two. What is 
uncertain, however, is the extent of the damage that will be done to businesses by 
the end of the lock down period, when the end of the lock down will occur, whether 
there could be a second wave of the outbreak, how soon a vaccine will be created 
and then how quickly it can be administered to the population. This leaves huge 
uncertainties as to how quickly the economy will recover.    

1.3 After the Monetary Policy Committee raised Bank Rate from 0.5% to 0.75% in 
August 2018, Brexit uncertainty caused the MPC to sit on its hands and to do 
nothing until March 2020; at this point it was abundantly clear that the coronavirus 
outbreak posed a huge threat to the economy of the UK.  Two emergency cuts in 
Bank Rate from 0.75% occurred in March, first to 0.25% and then to 0.10%. These 
cuts were accompanied by an increase in quantitative easing (QE), essentially the 
purchases of gilts (mainly) by the Bank of England of £200bn.  The Government 
and the Bank were also very concerned to stop people losing their jobs during this 
lock down period. Accordingly, the Government introduced various schemes to 
subsidise both employed and self-employed jobs for three months while the 
country is locked down. It also put in place a raft of other measures to help 
businesses access loans from their banks, (with the Government providing 
guarantees to the banks against losses), to tide them over the lock down period 
when some firms may have little or no income. However, at the time of writing, this 
leaves open a question as to whether some firms will be solvent, even if they take 
out such loans, and some may also choose to close as there is, and will be, 
insufficient demand for their services. At the time of writing, this is a rapidly 
evolving situation so there may be further measures to come from the Bank and 
the Government. The measures to support jobs and businesses already taken by 
the Government will result in a huge increase in the annual budget deficit in 

108



2020/21 from 2%, to nearly 11%.  The ratio of debt to GDP is also likely to 
increase from 80% to around 105%. In the Budget in March, the Government also 
announced a large increase in spending on infrastructure; this will also help the 
economy to recover once the lock down is ended.  Provided the coronavirus 
outbreak is brought under control relatively swiftly, and the lock down is eased, 
then it is hoped that there would be a sharp recovery, but one that would take a 
prolonged time to fully recover previous lost momentum. 

1.4 Inflation has posed little concern for the MPC during the last year, being mainly 
between 1.5 – 2.0%.  It is also not going to be an issue for the near future as the 
world economy will be heading into a recession which is already causing a glut in 
the supply of oil which has fallen sharply in price. Other prices will also be under 
downward pressure while wage inflation has also been on a downward path over 
the last half year and is likely to continue that trend in the current environment. 
While inflation could even turn negative in the Eurozone, this is currently not likely 
in the UK.    

1.5 Employment had been growing healthily through the last year but it has taken a 
big hit from March 2020 onwards. The good news over the last year is that wage 
inflation has been significantly higher than CPI inflation which means that 
consumer real spending power had been increasing and so will have provided 
support to GDP growth. However, while people cannot leave their homes to do 
non-food shopping, retail sales will also take a big hit. 

2 USA.   

2.1 Growth in quarter 1 of 2019 was strong at 3.1% but growth fell back to 2.0% in 
quarter 2 and 2.1% in quarters 3 and 4.  The slowdown in economic growth 
resulted in the Fed cutting rates from 2.25-2.50% by 0.25% in each of July, 
September and October. Once coronavirus started to impact the US in a big way, 
the Fed took decisive action by cutting rates twice by 0.50%, and then 1.00%, in 
March, all the way down to 0.00 – 0.25%. Near the end of March, Congress 
agreed a $2trn stimulus package (worth about 10% of GDP) and new lending 
facilities announced by the Fed which could channel up to $6trn in temporary 
financing to consumers and firms over the coming months. Nearly half of the first 
figure is made up of permanent fiscal transfers to households and firms, including 
cash payments of $1,200 to individuals. However, all this will not stop the US 
falling into a sharp recession in quarter 2 of 2020; some estimates are that growth 
could fall by as much as 40%. The first two weeks in March of initial jobless claims 
have already hit a total of 10 million and look headed for a total of 15 million by the 
end of March. 

3 EUROZONE   

3.1 The annual rate of GDP growth has been steadily falling, from 1.8% in 2018 to 
only 0.9% y/y in quarter 4 in 2019.  The European Central Bank (ECB) ended its 
programme of quantitative easing purchases of debt in December 2018, which 
meant that the central banks in the US, UK and EU had all ended the phase of 
post financial crisis expansion of liquidity supporting world financial markets by 
purchases of debt.  However, the downturn in EZ growth, together with inflation 
falling well under the upper limit of its target range of 0 to 2%, (but it aims to keep 
it near to 2%), prompted the ECB to take new measures to stimulate growth.  At its 
March 2019 meeting it announced a third round of targeted longer-term 

109



refinancing operations (TLTRO); this provided banks with cheap two year maturity 
borrowing every three months from September 2019 until March 2021. However, 
since then, the downturn in EZ and world growth has gathered momentum so at its 
meeting in September 2019, it cut its deposit rate further into negative territory, 
from -0.4% to -0.5% and announced a resumption of quantitative easing 
purchases of debt to start in November at €20bn per month, a relatively small 
amount, plus more TLTRO measures. Once coronavirus started having a major 
impact in Europe, the ECB took action in March 2020 to expand its QE operations 
and other measures to help promote expansion of credit and economic growth.  

4 CHINA 

4.1 Economic growth has been weakening over successive years, despite repeated 
rounds of central bank stimulus; medium-term risks have also been increasing. 
The major feature of 2019 was the trade war with the US.  However, this has been 
eclipsed by being the first country to be hit by the coronavirus outbreak; this 
resulted in a lock down of the country and a major contraction of economic activity 
in February-March 2020.  While it appears that China has put a lid on the virus by 
the end of March, these are still early days to be confident and it is clear that the 
economy is going to take some time to recover its previous rate of growth.  
Ongoing economic issues remain, in needing to make major progress to eliminate 
excess industrial capacity and to switch investment from property construction and 
infrastructure to consumer goods production. It also needs to address the level of 
non-performing loans in the banking and credit systems.  

5 JAPAN  

5.1 Japan has been struggling to stimulate consistent significant GDP growth and to 
get inflation up to its target of 2%, despite huge monetary and fiscal stimulus. It is 
also making little progress on fundamental reform of the economy. It appears to 
have missed much of the domestic impact from coronavirus in 2019-20 but the 
virus is at an early stage there. 

6 WORLD GROWTH 

6.1 The trade war between the US and China on tariffs was a major concern to 
financial markets and was depressing worldwide growth during 2019, as any 
downturn in China would spill over into impacting countries supplying raw 
materials to China. Concerns were particularly focused on the synchronised 
general weakening of growth in the major economies of the world. These concerns 
resulted in government bond yields in the developed world falling significantly 
during 2019. In 2020, coronavirus is the big issue which is going to sweep around 
the world and have a major impact in causing a world recession in growth in 2020.  

 

110



Appendix C.  Treasury Management Glossary of Terms   

Authorised Limit (Also known as the Affordable Limit): 

A statutory limit that sets the maximum level of external borrowing on a gross 
basis (i.e. not net of investments) for the Council. It is measured on a daily basis 
against all external borrowing items on the Balance Sheet (i.e. long and short 
term borrowing, overdrawn bank balances and long term liabilities). 

Balances and Reserves: 

Accumulated sums that are maintained either earmarked for specific future costs 
or commitments or generally held to meet unforeseen or emergency expenditure. 

Bank Rate: 

The official interest rate set by the Bank of England’s Monetary Policy Committee 
and what is generally termed at the “base rate”. This rate is also referred to as 
the ‘repo rate’. 

Basis Point: 

A unit of measure used in finance to describe the percentage change in the value 
or rate of a financial instrument. One basis point is equivalent to 0.01% (1/100th 
of a percent). In most cases, it refers to changes in interest rates and bond yields. 
For example, if interest rates rise by 25 basis points, it means that rates have 
risen by 0.25% percentage points. If rates were at 2.50%, and rose by 0.25%, or 
25 basis points, the new interest rate would be 2.75%. 

Bond: 

A certificate of debt issued by a company, government, or other institution. The 
bond holder receives interest at a rate stated at the time of issue of the bond. The 
price of a bond may vary during its life. 

Capital Expenditure: 

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of capital assets. 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR): 

The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes representing the 
cumulative capital expenditure of the local authority that has not been financed.  

Capital Receipts:  

Money obtained on the sale of a capital asset. 

Credit Rating: 

Formal opinion by a registered rating agency of a counterparty’s future ability to 
meet its financial liabilities; these are opinions only and not guarantees. 

Counterparty List:  

List of approved financial institutions with which the Council can place 
investments with. 

Debt Management Office (DMO):  

The DMO is an Executive Agency of Her Majesty's Treasury and provides direct 
access for local authorities into a government deposit facility known as the 

111



DMADF. All deposits are guaranteed by HM Government and therefore have the 
equivalent of a sovereign triple-A credit rating. 

Gilts:  

Gilts are bonds issued by the UK Government. They take their name from ‘gilt-
edged’. Being issued by the UK government, they are deemed to be very secure 
as the investor expects to receive the full face value of the bond to be repaid on 
maturity. 

LIBID:  

The London Interbank Bid Rate (LIBID) is the rate bid by banks on Eurocurrency 
deposits (i.e. the rate at which a bank is willing to borrow from other banks). 

LIBOR:  

The London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) is the rate of interest that banks 
charge to lend money to each other. The British Bankers' Association (BBA) work 
with a small group of large banks to set the LIBOR rate each day. The wholesale 
markets allow banks who need money to be more fluid in the marketplace to 
borrow from those with surplus amounts. The banks with surplus amounts of 
money are keen to lend so that they can generate interest which it would not 
otherwise receive. 

Maturity:  

The date when an investment or borrowing is repaid. 

Money Market Funds (MMF):  

Pooled funds which invest in a range of short term assets providing high credit 
quality and high liquidity. 

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP):  

An annual provision that the Council is statutorily required to set aside and 
charge to the Revenue Account for the repayment of debt associated with 
expenditure incurred on capital assets. 

Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP):  

An additional contribution over and above the MRP that the Council can choose 
to make to reduce the CFR which in turn will reduce the MRP for future years. 

Non Specified Investment:  

Investments which fall outside the CLG Guidance for Specified investments 
(below). 

Operational Boundary:  

This linked directly to the Council’s estimates of the CFR and estimates of other 
day to day cash flow requirements. This indicator is based on the same estimates 
as the Authorised Limit reflecting the most likely prudent but not worst case 
scenario but without the additional headroom included within the Authorised 
Limit.  

Prudential Code:  

Developed by CIPFA and introduced on 01/4/2004 as a professional code of 
practice to support local authority capital investment planning within a clear, 

112



affordable, prudent and sustainable framework and in accordance with good 
professional practice. 

Prudential Indicators:  

Prudential indicators are a set of financial indicators and limits that are calculated 
in order to demonstrate that Councils' capital investment plans are affordable, 
prudent and sustainable. 

They are outlined in the CIPFA Prudential Code of Practice. They are indicators 
that must be used to cover the categories of affordability, prudence, capital 
spending, external debt/borrowing and treasury management. They take the form 
of limits, ratios or targets which are approved by Council before 1 April each year 
and are monitored throughout the year on an on-going basis. A Council may also 
choose to use additional voluntary indicators. 

Public Works Loans Board (PWLB):  

The PWLB is a statutory body operating within the United Kingdom Debt 
Management Office, an Executive Agency of HM Treasury. The PWLB's function 
is to lend money from the National Loans Fund to local authorities and other 
prescribed bodies, and to collect the repayments.  

Revenue Expenditure:  

Expenditure to meet the continuing cost of delivery of services including salaries 
and wages, the purchase of materials and capital financing charges.  

(Short) Term Deposits:  

Deposits of cash with terms attached relating to maturity and rate of return 
(Interest). 

Specified Investments:  

Term used in the CLG Guidance and Welsh Assembly Guidance for Local 
Authority Investments. Investments that offer high security and high liquidity, in 
sterling and for no more than one year. UK government, local authorities and 
bodies that have a high credit rating. 

Supported Borrowing:  

Borrowing for which the costs are supported by the government or third party. 

Temporary Borrowing:  

Borrowing to cover peaks and troughs of cash flow, not to fund capital spending. 

Unsupported Borrowing:  

Borrowing which is self-financed by the local authority. This is also sometimes 
referred to as Prudential Borrowing. 

Yield:  

The measure of the return on an investment. 

 

 

113



This page is intentionally left blank



Report No: 96/2020 
PUBLIC REPORT 

CABINET 

18th August 2020 

OAKHAM ENTERPRISE PARK SITE INFRASTRUCTURE 
CHANGES 

Report of the Strategic Director Places 

Strategic Aim: Priority 1 – Delivering Sustainable Development 

Priority 2 – Vibrant Places 

Priority 4 – Customer Focussed Services 

Key Decision: Yes Forward Plan Reference: FP/120620 

Exempt Information No 

Cabinet Member(s) 
Responsible: 

Cllr G Brown (Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Planning, Environment, Property and Finance) 

Contact 
Officer(s): 

Mona Walsh 
Head of Property Services 

Tel: 01572 7208391 
MWalsh2@rutland.gov.uk 

 Diane Grattage 
Senior Building Surveyor 

Tel: 01572 7208254 
Dgrattage@rutland.gov.uk 

Ward Councillors Cllr J Fox (Exton Ward) 

 

DECISION RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Cabinet: 

1. Approve the additional revenue funds to pay for the Mothballing of Unit 5 Oakham 
Enterprise Park for the following as per the table in para 2.1 

a) One-off costs £3,500 

b) Annual Costs/Lost Income £48,600 

2. Approve a new capital budget for the replacement of fencing to the derelict element 
of Oakham Enterprise Park with Timber Hoarding at a cost of £10,500 

3. Approve the creation of new Capital Project for the provision of a new access 
entrance facility with supplementary mini roundabout at Oakham Enterprise Park 
(Gate One) at a cost of £68,000 
 

1 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT  

1.1 The Council as commercial landlord of Oakham Enterprise Park is obliged to keep 
its premises in good or substantial repair and condition as stipulated by a 
combination of responsibilities laid down in legislation and local lease agreements 

115

Agenda Item 9

file:///S:/Meetings%20-%20tfr%20to%20Sharepoint/REPORT%20NUMBERS
http://rutlandcounty.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=300&Year=0
mailto:Dgrattage@rutland.gov.uk


1.2 In accordance with those obligations, this report presents a proposal to address 
safe primary access/egress arrangements onto the site by replacing the current 
arrangements with a suitable and sufficient two way access road and mini 
roundabout solution for which approval for capital funding is required. 

1.3 Additionally, due to successful termination of tenancy arrangements and relocation 
of businesses affected at Unit 5 following the identification of non-reconcilable 
health and safety matters a decision is now required about the future of this unit 
and approval for funding of such action. 

1.4 To inform Cabinet of the installation of close boarded hoarding to the demolished 
prison block western boundary that will provide enhanced site protection whilst 
improving aesthetics to the commercial envelope at a cost of approximately 
£10,500.  

2 BACKGROUND AND MAIN CONSIDERATIONS  

2.1 Unit 5 Oakham Enterprise Park was until recently occupied by eight individual 
tenants. Following a survey a decision was made to vacate the units on health and 
safety grounds as costs to remediate non-compliance would have exceeded all 
anticipated income potential. All businesses were successfully relocated. 
Demolition of the units would result in exceptional expenditure in the order of 
£350,000 involving the remodelling of utilities that serve the wider site and 
asbestos removal works. Unit 5 does not currently present an aesthetic or 
structural challenge therefore mothballing it pending a future site wide property 
strategy presents a more fiscally favourable solution. The costs to make safe the 
building in a dormant state shown below are a prudent view on estimated costs. 
The Council will look to minimise these wherever possible.    
  

Description One Off 
Costs (£) 

Ongoing 
Annual Cost 

Isolation of key utilities and services 2,500  

Making safe asbestos containing 
materials 

1,000  

Provision of ongoing monitoring  300 

Business Rates  15,400 

Insurance  2,000 

Utility Standing Charges  900 

Lost Rent and Service Charge  30,000 

Total 3,500 48,600 

 
2.2 Developing a long term strategy for the site, following the failure of the Phase II 

development, will enable the Council to address significant legacy issues at 
Oakham Enterprise Park affecting building regulations and provision of services 
and utilities to tenants and other users. 

2.3 The derelict land and aggregate spoil heap located towards the centre of Oakham 
Enterprise Park site presents an adverse aesthetic and increasing safety concerns 
due to delays associated with development expectations and lack of demand for 
graded aggregate at this time. A proposal to change the temporary Heras fencing 
solution along the western boundary for a more secure timber hoarding design that 
will provide effective screening and background for tailored marketing activities 

116



has been agreed by the Commercial Property Project Board in May 2020 at a 
provisional cost of £10,500, subject to Cabinet approval.  

2.4 Oakham Enterprise Park benefits from two primary access gates, two secondary 
access gates and one additional emergency access only gate for use by the fire 
service. These gates are legacy prison installations with those at entrance one 
presenting a number of enhanced hazards to users on the site as a result of their 
design and physical size. 

2.5 An investigation into potential solutions which would enhance the overall aesthetic 
appearance of the park, also provide improve site access control, meet essential 
health and safety criteria (such as segregation of vehicles and pedestrians and 
improve traffic flow) and mitigation of hazards associated with access/egress from 
the Ashwell Road public highway has now been completed. 

3 ACCESS OPTIONS ASSESSED 

3.1 Investigations’ key findings highlighted a number of physical attributes that require 
detailed consideration when forming the four options submitted to the Commercial 
Property Board in May 2020. They included: 

Option 1 – Formation of new entrance access road with separate pedestrian 
footpath 

Option 2 – As option one with control barriers. 

Option 3 – As option one with supplementary mini roundabout to manage traffic 
flow behaviour on site. 

Option 4 –Take no action. 

3.2 Commercial Property Board considered the various challenges and opportunities 
of each proposal and recommended that Option 3 be submitted as the preferred 
solution at a price of £68,000 

4 CONSULTATION  

4.1 Formal and informal tenant consultation has identified increasing dissatisfaction 
with the safety and security of the primary access route into Oakham Enterprise 
Park with requests for improvement to be undertaken that will address these, 
along with the appearance of the site. 

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS  

5.1 Design consideration options were considered by the Commercial Property Board 
and found to be insufficient to address many of the specific site challenges. A no 
action option was considered but identified as not conducive to attracting future 
clients and presenting an enhanced risk to the landlord in respect to potential 
claims for injury. 

5.2 As per paragraph 2.1 the demolition of unit 5 was considered.  The high costs of 
demolition (£350k) meant that this option was not deemed to be cost effective at 
this point in time. 

117



5.3 Cabinet could choose to fund the works via a different method as detailed in 
section 6, but as the other options would incur additional revenue costs it is not 
advised. 

6 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

6.1 The financial implications regarding the mothballing of unit 5 is shown in 
paragraph 2.1 

6.2 The costs associated with the fencing and the expenditure in relation to the works 
on the main entrance to OEP is in relation to how to fund the expenditure, there 
are a few options detailed below. 

 Prudential Borrow – this would incur additional costs, the minimum cost for 
the borrowing would be c£3,000 per annum. 

 Capital Receipts – The Council is currently holding £1.5m of Capital 
Receipt’s that is not currently committed 

 Revenue Contribution – the revenue position of the Council does not allow 
for this level of investment. 

6.3 The recommended option is to use capital receipts to fund both the Entrance and 
Fencing works (totalling £78,500) as the council has available resources and it 
would not require any additional revenue costs to support. 

7 LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE CONSIDERATIONS 

7.1 As stated in section 1 the Council has a statutory obligation to ensure that the 
property it leases are maintained to an acceptable level so investment in the site is 
required to meet this obligation. 

7.2 The Councils Financial procedure rules require additions to the capital programme 
above £50k to be approved by Cabinet. The recommendations within the report 
ensure these requirements are met. 

8 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS 

8.1 A Data Protection Impact Assessments (DPIA) has been completed. No adverse 
or other significant risks/issues were found. A copy of the DPIA can be obtained 
from (report contact person's details) 

9 EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 

9.1 An Equality Impact questionnaire has been completed. No adverse or other 
significant risks / issues were found. As such, a full Equality Impact Assessment 
(EqIA) has not been completed. 

10 COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 Maintenance of these assets in accordance with statutory and regulatory controls 
will prevent users of the amenities being at risk of harm. Typical risks would 
include, slips, trips or falls, impact with motor vehicles, threat of personal attack 
and/or harm resulting from theft or vandalism of assets or personal effects. 

118



11 HEALTH AND WELLBEING IMPLICATIONS  

11.1 Provision of a well maintained and cared for environment will ensure workers and 
visitors to the site are able to carry out their daily activities safely whilst 
contributing to the sustainability of the asset and future carbon footprint. 

12 ORGANISATIONAL IMPLICATIONS 

12.1 Procurement Implications 

12.2 The proposed works incorporate three distinct packages of work namely: 

a) Installation of highways works to form new entrance solution via Rutland 
County Councils highways framework partner Tarmac Construction. 

b) Making safe & isolation where necessary of utilities and services within Unit 
5 in accordance with statutory regulations.  

c) The installation of replacement timber hoarding to on the western boundary 
of the old demolition site. 

12.3 These will be procured separately in accordance with the Council’s current 
financial standing orders and procurement policy supporting local SME’s where 
possible. 

13 CONCLUSION AND SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR THE 
RECOMMENDATIONS   

13.1 The Council is required by a variety of statutory and regulatory duties, primarily  

  Health and Safety at Work Act etc.1974 and 

  Landlord and Tenant Act 1954  

  Ensuring business premises are ‘well maintained, safe and healthy places for 
people to visit and work, so far as reasonably practicable’. 

13.2 The use of Oakham Enterprise Park as a site for local employment and training 
now requires additional investment to ensure safe access/egress, security of 
redundant units and land is maintained to a satisfactory standard as defined by 
regulatory duty and local lease agreements. 

13.3 An inability to maintain this asset in accordance with the above may result in 
reduced future lettings and an increased risk profile as tenants perceive adverse 
impact on their business and employees. 

13.4 Proposed solutions that have been specified to remediate the challenges 
presented at Oakham Enterprise Park offer sustainable and resilient solutions that 
are suitable and sufficient and will not effectively sterilise future development 
opportunities. 

14 BACKGROUND PAPERS  

14.1 No background papers 

119



15 APPENDICES  

15.1 No appendices 

 

A Large Print or Braille Version of this Report is available 
upon request – Contact 01572 722577. 

 

120


	Agenda
	6 COVID 19 UPDATE & APPROACH TO CONTINUED USE OF EMERGENCY POWERS - UPDATE
	7 STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
	Appendix 1 SCI Aug 2020 Final changes highlighted
	Appendix 2 - SCI consultation summary  responses August 2020 Final -
	Appendix 3 -  EqIA Screening 2nd review SCI June 2020 (002)

	8 ANNUAL REPORT ON TREASURY MANAGEMENT AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2019/20
	9 OAKHAM ENTERPRISE PARK SITE INFRASTRUCTURE CHANGES

